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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NGIE=E S

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 March 2024)
Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman)
(retired on 4 March 2024)
Mr. WEI Junyong
Mr. YUAN Feng
(re-designated from a non-executive Director
on 3 June 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YUAN Feng
(appointed on 4 March 2024, and re-designated
as an executive director on 3 June 2024)
Ms. LI Yunjuan
(appointed on 3 June 2024 and
resigned on 30 December 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSE Chi Man (resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. YAO Xianguo (resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. WU Chongguo (appointed on 3 June 2024)
Ms. WU Ying (appointed on 3 June 2024)

Mr. YU Wayne W.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
(resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. WU Chongguo (Chairman)
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Mr. YAO Xianguo

(resigned on 3 June 2024))
Ms. WU Ying

(appointed on 3 June 2024)
Mr. YU Wayne W.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)
(resigned on 3 June 2024)
Ms. WU Ying (Chairman)
(appointed on 3 June 2024)
Mr. GUAN Dayuan
(appointed on 4 March 2024)
Mr. XU Anliang
(retired on 4 March 2024)
Mr. TSE Chi Man
(resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. WU Chongguo
(appointed on 3 June 2024)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 March 2024)
Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman)
(retired on 4 March 2024)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
(resigned on 3 June 2024)
Ms. WU Ying
(appointed on 3 June 2024)
Mr. YU Wayne W.

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. GUAN Dayuan

(appointed on 4 March 2024)
Mr. WEI Junyong
Mr. XU Anliang

(retired on 4 March 2024)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHUNG Ming Fai
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NGIE=E S
AUDITOR
KPMG

Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance
with the Accounting and Financial Reporting Council

Ordinance
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER TO THE COMPANY

As to Hong Kong Law
DLA Piper Hong Kong
25th Floor

Three Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

PO Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lIslands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Head Office

No.181-1 Hejiatang, Chongxian Subdistrict
Linping District, Hangzhou 311108
Zhejiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
248 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

E-mail: info@puxing-energy.com

COMPANY WEBSITE

WWW.puxing-energy.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
R1 %5 1ie) B2

For the year ended
31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
T NE
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
AREFr AR¥TT =)
Revenue & 534,054 513,510 4.00%
Profit from operations BT 119,668 140,772 -14.99%
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 7/ 514 4 B2 5 FE {5
of the Company B EEA 59,902 70,842 -15.44%
Basic earnings per share SRERRF RMBO0.131 RMBO0.154 -14.94%
Dividend per share BERKRE ARK0.13177 NG NREISS
— Interim —F Nil Nil 0%
- Proposed final —RREKH HK$0.014 Nil 100%
0.014#E 7T i
At 31 December
R+=B=+-H
2024 2023
T NE
RMB’000 RMB’000 Chapge
LS ARET =)
Total assets BEE 1,914,880 1,729,629 10.71%
Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company A REEm IR R G B 876,280 816,130 7.37%
Net asset value per share' SEREEFE RMB1.91 RMB1.78 7.30%
ARH1.917T NELANETT
Net debt? BR3P 718,317 697,618 2.97%
Total capital? BEARMBEE 1,594,597 1,513,748 5.34%
Gearing ratio* BRERLE 45.05% 46.09% -2.26%
Notes: T -
1 Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company 1. ARG ELAER
Number of ordinary shares in issue BETEEREE
2. Total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings, shareholder’s 2. BE%EE (BEtEBE - REERKAEASR) — 1
loan and lease liabilities) — Cash and cash equivalents S RFESEEY
3. Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company + 3. AN BRI R AR S BT FRR
Net debt
4 Net debt 4 EFFRE
Total Capital BT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Puxing Energy Limited (“Puxing Energy”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual report of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024.

In 2024, with the continuous efforts of the Chinese
government to enhance the vitality of social and
economic development, alongside the internal and
external changes in the global economic environment,
social and economic activities have steadily improved.
Meanwhile, affected by the comprehensive impact
of social production and power consumption, the
overall social power consumption demand in Zhejiang
Province remained stable. Based on our own business
development and grid power generation scheduling
needs, the overall power generation volume of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 increased
by 15.62% to 305,663.81 MWh as compared to
264,361.73 MWh in 2023. Meanwhile, with the
comprehensive impact of the increase in power
generation volume and the decrease in heat sales
volume during the year, the total consumption of natural
gas decreased by 0.13% to 68,406,436 m® from
68,496,863 m?3 in 2023 due to an increase in natural
gas consumption caused by more frequent start-stop
operations as a result of the frequent participation in
electricity spot trading in 2024. The cut in capacity
tariff effective from 1 January 2022 has maintained until
2024, resulted in the capacity tariff revenue in 2024
remaining at the same level as in 2023.

EERES

SR NRE
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BRRINIS B T R EETEEEEUES
B BRI EEEAERERGEEE N
TEHEEBAEERRFFE AERG
CEBREERNEMBBAET R BE
TECNFE+ B+ —HIEFENEEE
BEER _T - =FmM264,361.73K R EFIZ M
15.62%E305,663.81 KR - @K > HER
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERERE

During the year, according to the “Notice from
the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Optimising the Province’s
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generation” (Zhe
Fa Gai Price [2021] No. 357) issued by Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission (the
“ZDRC”) on 28 September 2021, in order to accelerate
the market-oriented reform of electricity prices and
liberalise the electricity prices in competitive links in an
orderly manner, the capacity tariff of the Company’s
power plants has been adjusted from 1 January 2022.
Meanwhile, a gas-electricity price linkage mechanism
has also been launched, and the monthly electricity
sales price of each power plant of the Company
(except Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Jingxing Power Plant”), which is a local
dispatch power plant) shall be determined according
to the comprehensive price of natural gas (weighted by
different gas sources and different gas prices).

After adjustment, the capacity tariff of Zhejiang Puxing
Bluesky Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd. (“Bluesky Power
Plant”), Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Deneng Power Plant”) and Jingxing Power
Plant under the Company was adjusted to RMB394.8/
kW/year, which remained unchanged as compared to
RMB394.8/kW/year of last year; the capacity tariff of
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Aniji
Power Plant”) and Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd. (“Quzhou Power Plant”) was adjusted
to RMB571.2/kW/year, which remained unchanged as
compared to RMB571.2/kW/year of last year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB59.90 million and earnings per share
was RMBO0.131, representing a decrease of 14.94%
as compared with last year. As at 31 December 2024,
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB876.28 million and net asset value
per share was approximately RMB1.91, representing an
increase of 7.30% as compared with last year.

POWER GENERATION BUSINESS

In order to cooperate with the trial implementation of
the Dual Tariff Policy in Zhejiang Province, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2024
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the peak demand within the power grid.
Affected by the overall external economic environment
and the adjustment to the overall electricity
procurement demand of Zhejiang Province in 2024, the
production volume by natural gas of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 increased by 41,302.08
MWh or 15.62% to approximately 305,663.81 MWh
as compared to 264,361.73 MWh in 2023 under the
condition of meeting the peak demand of the power
grid.

In 2025, affected by the cut in capacity tariff and
the rise in natural gas prices, in order to ensure the
profitability of the Group, the Group will follow up
the dynamics and development of relevant policies
continuously, and will optimize the business methods of
natural gas power generation business in due course.
Meanwhile, the Group will actively research and discuss
with the natural gas power generation enterprises in the
province how to solve the current difficulties faced by
the natural gas power generation industry, and call for
government policy support.

EERES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERERE

HEATING BUSINESS

The Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant under
the Group provide steam to manufacturers near heating
pipelines. The maximum hourly heating capacity is
approximately 360 tons (2023: 360 tons).

During the year, affected by the fluctuations of external
economic environment, the adjustment of natural gas
prices, the decline of heat supply and other factors,
the number of heat users and demand decreased, the
heating price decreased and the overall heat sales
volume of the Group decreased. The Group’s heat
sales volume for the year ended 31 December 2024
decreased by 5.43% to 107,228 tons as compared to
113,387 tons in 2023; the revenue from sales of heat
decreased by 12.03% to RMB39,260,000 as compared
to RMB44,628,000 in 2023. The average selling price
(inclusive of VAT) decreased by 8.13% to approximately
RMB394.14/ton as compared to approximately
RMB429.01/ton in 2023.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

2025 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy.
The cut in capacity tariff in Zhejiang Province and the
fluctuation of natural gas prices have brought a severe
test to the profitability of Puxing Energy. The Group will
closely follow the development of the electricity market,
actively study and explore new forms of business
models, strive to find new market convergence points,
strengthen the development of heating business,
and step up cost management, cooperate with the
continuous implementation of refined management and
strict cost control, actively face challenges, so as to
minimise the impact of policy and external economic
environment changes.

Looking ahead, Chinese government will uphold its firm
commitment to the “double carbon” goal of peaking
carbon emission and achieving carbon neutrality,
resolutely accelerate in the development of new energy,
optimise its energy structure, and embark on a green,
low-carbon and circular development path. The fields
of green power, energy storage, and smart energy
will usher in a period of significant opportunities for
development, which will bring huge opportunities for
the Group for transforming into an integrated energy
supplier. As an energy company with energy as its
development core, with the goal of transforming into
an integrated energy supplier and achieving diversified
development of its energy business, the Group will
increase research on national new energy policies,
strive to find new opportunities, strive for different
types of energy projects, diversify its energy business
structure, and make unremitting efforts to enhance the
Group’s long-term growth potential and shareholder
value.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMEN
EEERS

Finally, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to
the shareholders, business partners, directors,
management team as well as the loyal and diligent staff
members of the Group for their continuous support.

GUAN Dayuan
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, PRC, 28 March 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. The Group has five wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants in Zhejiang Province, with an aggregate
installed capacity of 688.07 megawatt (MW) (2023:
688.07 MW) (including 1,072 kilowatt (kW) (2023:
1,072 kW) photovoltaic power generating units) and a
maximum heating capacity per hour of 360 tons (2023:
360 tons). Newly-added aggregate installed capacity
of energy storage on the grid was 100 MW/200 MWh
(2023: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, with the continuous efforts of the Chinese
government to enhance the vitality of social and
economic development, alongside the internal and
external changes in the global economic environment,
social and economic activities have steadily improved.
Meanwhile, affected by the comprehensive impact
of social production and power consumption, the
overall social power consumption demand in Zhejiang
Province remained stable. Based on our own business
development and grid power generation scheduling
needs, the overall power generation volume of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024 increased
by 15.62% to 305,663.81 MWh as compared to
264,361.73 MWh in 2023. Meanwhile, with the
comprehensive impact of the increase in power
generation volume and the decrease in heat sales
volume during the year, the total consumption of natural
gas decreased by 0.13% to 68,406,436 m* from
68,496,863 m?® in 2023 due to an increase in natural
gas consumption caused by more frequent start-stop
operations as a result of the frequent participation in
electricity spot trading in 2024. The cut in capacity
tariff effective from 1 January 2022 has maintained until
2024, resulted in the capacity tariff revenue in 2024
remaining at the same level as in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFmADN

During the year, according to the “Notice from
the Zhejiang Provincial Development and Reform
Commission Regarding the Optimising the Province’s
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power Generation” (Zhe
Fa Gai Price [2021] No. 357) issued by Zhejiang
Provincial Development and Reform Commission (the
“ZDRC”) on 28 September 2021, in order to accelerate
the market-oriented reform of electricity prices and
liberalise the electricity prices in competitive links in an
orderly manner, the capacity tariff of the Company’s
power plants has been adjusted from 1 January 2022.
Meanwhile, a gas-electricity price linkage mechanism
has also been launched, and the monthly electricity
sales price of each power plant of the Company
(except Jingxing Power Plant, which is a local dispatch
power plant) shall be determined according to the
comprehensive price of natural gas (weighted by
different gas sources and different gas prices).

After adjustment, the capacity tariff of Bluesky Power
Plant, Deneng Power Plant and Jingxing Power Plant
under the Company was adjusted to RMB394.8/kW/
year, which remained unchanged as compared to
RMB394.8/kW/year of last year; the capacity tariff
of Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant was
adjusted to RMB571.2/kW/year, which remained
unchanged as compared to RMB571.2/kW/year of last
year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, affected by the changes in external
economic environment, the adjustment of natural gas
prices, the decline of heat supply and other factors,
the number of heat users and demand decreased, the
heating price decreased and the overall heat sales
volume of the Company decreased. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group’s heat sales volume
decreased by 5.43% to 107,228 tons as compared
to 113,387 tons in 2023, and the revenue from sales
of heat decreased by 12.03% to RMB39,260,000 as
compared to RMB44,628,000 in 2023.

During the year, ZDRC adjusted the volume tariff of
natural gas power generating units and gate station
price for natural gas (inclusive of value-added tax
(VAT)) for several times. After several adjustments
during the year, the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of
Bluesky Power Plant under the Group was adjusted
from RMBO0.7899/kilowatt hour (kWh) at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.7007/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 11.29%; the
volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant
was adjusted from RMBO0.7047/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMB0.7061/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a increase of approximately 0.19%; the
volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB0.9028/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMB0.7515/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 16.76%;
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant
was adjusted from RMBO0.7689/kWh at the beginning
of the year to RMBO0.6607/kWh at the end of the year,
representing a decrease of approximately 14.08%;
the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Quzhou Power
Plant was adjusted from RMBO0.7746/kWh at the
beginning of the year to RMB0.6644/kWh at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
14.22%. The price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Bluesky Power Plant under the Group was adjusted
from RMB3.4285/m® at the beginning of the year to
RMB3.0415/m® at the end of the year, representing
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHRES N

a decrease of approximately 11.29%; the price of
natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB3.0587/m?3 at the beginning
of the year to RMB3.0648/m?® at the end of the year,
representing an increase of approximately 0.20%;
the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing
Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.4300/m?® at the
beginning of the year to RMB3.2620/m® at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
4.90%; the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Anji Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.6340/m? at
the beginning of the year to RMB3.1226/m? at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
14.07%; the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Quzhou Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.6611/
m? at the beginning of the year to RMB3.1404/m?
at the end of the year, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.22%; the capacity tariff of each
power plant (inclusive of VAT) remained unchanged
during the year ended 31 December 2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EQUITY INSTALLED CAPACITY

As at 31 December 2024, the equity installed capacity
of power plants held and operated by the Group are as
follows:

The total installed capacity of the power generating
units in the power plants under the Group was 688.07
MW, with a total equity installed capacity of 688.07
MW and the equity interest proportion of 100%.
Among them, the total installed capacity of the power
generating units in Bluesky Power Plant was 112.34
MW, with a total equity installed capacity of 112.34 MW
and the equity interest proportion of 100%, in which
the installed capacity of natural gas power generating
units was 112 MW, and the installed capacity of
photovoltaic power generating units was 0.34 MW. The
total installed capacity of the power generating units in
Deneng Power Plant was 112 MW, with a total equity
installed capacity of 112 MW and the equity interest
proportion of 100%, in which the installed capacity of
natural gas power generating units was 112 MW. The
total installed capacity of the power generating units
in Jingxing Power Plant was 75.22 MW, with a total
equity installed capacity of 75.22 MW and the equity
interest proportion of 100%, in which the installed
capacity of natural gas power generating units was
75 MW, and the installed capacity of photovoltaic
power generating units was 0.22 MW. The total
installed capacity of the power generating units in
Anji Power Plant was 158.36 MW, with a total equity
installed capacity of 1568.36 MW and the equity interest
proportion of 100%, in which the installed capacity of
natural gas power generating units was 158 MW, and
the installed capacity of photovoltaic power generating
units was 0.36 MW. The total installed capacity of
the power generating units in Quzhou Power Plant
was 230.15 MW, with a total equity installed capacity
of 230.15 MW and the equity interest proportion of
100%, in which the installed capacity of natural gas
power generating units was 230 MW, and the installed
capacity of photovoltaic power generating units was
0.15 MW. The total energy storage installed capacity of
power grid was 100MW/200MWh, in which the energy
storage installed capacity of Bluesky Power Plant was
100MW/200MWh.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Production Volume
Natural Gas Power Generation

In order to cooperate with the trial implementation of
the Dual Tariff Policy in Zhejiang Province, the relevant
government authorities have organised the 2024
production plan for natural gas power generating units
based on the peak demand within the power grid.
Affected by the overall external economic environment
and the adjustment to the overall electricity
procurement demand of Zhejiang Province in 2024, the
production volume by natural gas of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 increased by 41,302.08
MWh or 15.62% to 305,663.81 MWh as compared
to 264,361.73 MWh in 2023 under the condition of
meeting the peak demand of the power grid.

Photovoltaic Power Generation

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s
installed capacity of photovoltaic generating units
was 1,072 kW (2023: 1,072 kW), the electricity
generated is mainly used to supplement the auxiliary
power consumption rate of the power plants, and the
remainder will be sold to the power grid.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, photovoltaics
production volume of the Group was approximately
1,059 MWh (2023: approximately 1,135 MWh), of
which approximately 93 MWh (2023: approximately 113
MWh) was sold to the power grid.

During the year, the Group saved power consumption
cost of RMB549,100 (2023: RMB618,600) through
photovoltaic power generation and realised a revenue
of RMB71,600 (2023: RMB67,400).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Heat Sales Volume

The Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant under
the Group provide steam to manufacturers near heating
pipelines. The maximum hourly heating capacity is
approximately 360 tons (2023: 360 tons).

During the year, affected by the fluctuations of external
economic environment, the adjustment of natural gas
prices, the decline of heat supply and other factors,
the number of heat users and demand decreased, the
heating price decreased and the overall heat sales
volume of the Company decreased. The Group’s heat
sales volume for the year ended 31 December 2024
decreased by 5.43% to 107,228 tons as compared to
113,387 tons in 2023; the revenue from sales of heat
decreased by 12.03% to RMB39,260,000 as compared
to RMB44,628,000 in 2023. The average selling price
(inclusive of VAT) decreased by 8.13% to approximately
RMB394.14/ton as compared to approximately
RMB429.01/ton in 2023.

The revenue from sales of heat of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024 was RMB39,260,000
(2023: RMB44,628,000).

Fuel Cost and Natural Gas Usage

All power plants under the Group use natural gas as
fuel for power generation, while Anji Power Plant and
Quzhou Power Plant under the Group also use natural
gas as fuel for heating at the same time. Natural
gas is the only source of fuel for the Group and is
mainly provided by the suppliers of the Group, namely
Zhejiang Zheneng Natural Gas Trading Co., Ltd. Gif
IHERARREZBRAT), PetroChina Company
Limited Zhejiang Sale Branch (FEAHXARIED
ERABXRRBEMNM I AT, and PipeChina
Zhejiang Provincial Natural Gas Pipeline Network Co.,
Ltd. (AIREWMEBRNIERAKTEBBRAF).
During the year, under the organisation of the Energy
Bureau in Zhejiang Province, all power plants under the
Group signed a special contract for natural gas sales
with several natural gas suppliers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The natural gas price in Zhejiang Province is
determined by ZDRC. According to the adjustment
of natural gas price made by ZDRC during the
year, the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Bluesky Power Plant under the Group was adjusted
from RMB3.4285/m® at the beginning of the year to
RMB3.0415/m?® at the end of the year, representing
a decrease of approximately 11.29%; the price of
natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Deneng Power Plant
was adjusted from RMB3.0587/m?® at the beginning
of the year to RMB3.0648/m? at the end of the year,
representing a increase of approximately 0.20%;
the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing
Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.4300/m?® at the
beginning of the year to RMB3.2620/m® at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
4.90%; the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Anji Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.6340/m? at
the beginning of the year to RMB3.1226/m? at the end
of the year, representing a decrease of approximately
14.07%; the price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of
Quzhou Power Plant was adjusted from RMB3.6611/
m? at the beginning of the year to RMB3.1404/m?
at the end of the year, representing a decrease of
approximately 14.22%.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, fuel costs
amounted to RMB231,361,000, representing an
increase of 9.31% as compared to RMB211,665,000 in
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The net profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2024 was RMB59,902,000, representing a decrease
of RMB10,940,000 or 15.44%, as compared to
RMB70,842,000 in 2023. For the year ended 31
December 2024, the basic and diluted earnings per
share of the Company amounted to RMB0.131,
representing a decrease of RMBO0.023 or 14.94% as
compared to RMBO0.154 in 2023.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue and revenue from sales of heat
and energy storage. Based on the own business
development of the Group and grid power generation
scheduling needs, the electricity sales volume from
participation in spot electricity trading, the heat supply
and heating prices decreased in 2024. Revenue of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
amounted to RMB534,054,000, representing an
increase of RMB20,544,000 or 4.00% as compared to
RMB513,510,000 in 2023.

Operating Expenses

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses
mainly comprised fuel consumption, depreciation
and amortisation, repairs and maintenance, staff
costs, administrative expenses, sales related taxes
and other operating expenses. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group’s operating expenses
were RMB414,386,000, representing an increase
of RMB41,648,000 or 11.17% as compared to
RMB372,738,000 in 2023. The increase in operating
expenses was mainly due to the increase in fuel costs
along with the impact of increased depreciation on the
completion of energy storage at the Bluesky Power
Plant and higher administrative expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Profit from Operations

Affected by the increase in power generation costs
caused by the fluctuations in fuel costs and the
increase in power generation, the profit from operations
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
was RMB119,668,000, representing a decrease
of RMB21,104,000 or 14.99% as compared to
RMB140,772,000 in 2023.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2024, net finance
costs of the Group amounted to RMB31,752,000,
representing a decrease of RMB5,126,000 or 13.90%
as compared to RMB36,878,000 in 2023. The
decrease in net financial costs was mainly due to the
reasonable arrangement of funds, early repayment
of borrowings due within the year and the decrease
in borrowing rates, resulting in a decrease in interest
expenses during the year.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
subject to the unified tax rate of 25%. For the
year ended 31 December 2024, income tax of the
Group amounted to RMB30,039,000, representing a
decrease of RMB6,758,000 or 18.37% as compared to
RMB36,797,000 in 2023. The decrease in income tax
for the year was mainly due to a decrease in profit from
operations.

Earnings per Share

For the year ended 31 December 2024, net profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB59,902,000 (2023: RMB70,842,000).
The basic and diluted earnings per share amounted to
RMBO0.131, representing a decrease of RMBO0.023 or
14.94% as compared to RMBO0.154 in 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Major Acquisitions, Disposals and Major
Investment Activities

Save as disclosed below and in this report, the
Group had no major acquisition, disposal and major
investment activities relating to its subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year.

Major and Connected Transaction relating to
the Disposal of 51% Equity Interest in Deneng
Power Plant

On 30 December 2024, Puxing Neng (HK) Limited
(the “Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, SHUNFA HENGNENG Corporation* (J[g2%
18AERR 1D /A E)) (the “Purchaser”’) and Deneng Power
Plant, entered into the an equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire,
51% of the equity interest in Deneng Power Plant at
the consideration of RMB142,720,000, subject to the
terms and conditions of the equity transfer agreement.
Upon the completion of the disposal, Deneng Power
Plant would cease to be a subsidiary of the Company.

The shares of the Purchaser are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000631) which were
owned as to approximately 62.28% by Wanxiang
Group, as at the date of entering into the equity transfer
agreement, which in turn is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Lu Weiding, the ultimate controller of the Company.
Accordingly, the Purchaser was a connected person of
the Company and the Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 30 December 2024 and the circular of
the Company dated 27 January 2025.

As at the date of this report, the Disposal is yet to be
completed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EREHRES N

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
denominated in Renminbi (RMB) and Hong Kong
Dollar (HKD). As at 31 December 2024, cash
and cash equivalents of the Group amounted
to RMB114,458,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB130,719,000).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had current
assets of RMB233,502,000 (31 December
2023: RMB251,272,000), current liabilities
of RMB463,094,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB536,271,000) and net current liabilities
of RMB229,592,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB284,999,000) with a current ratio of 0.50 (31
December 2023: 0.47). The increase in current ratio
was mainly attributable to a decrease in interests of
bank loans, resulting in a decrease in current liabilities.

As at 31 December 2024, the Groups had unused
revolving loan credit facilities granted by Wanxiang
Finance Co., Ltd. (“Wanxiang Finance”), a subsidiary of
Wanxiang Group Corporation (“Wanxiang Group”), of
RMB283 million (2023: RMB157 million).

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in RMB
and HKD. As at 31 December 2024, the Group had
total debts of RMB832,775,000 (31 December 2023:
RMB828,337,000), including shareholder’s loan of
RMB120,269,000 (2023: RMB112,866,000), lease
liabilities of RMBO (2023: RMB96,000), bank loans
of RMB195,680,000 (2023: RMB72,768,000), and
loans from related parties of RMB516,826,000 (2023:
RMB642,607,000). Among them, bank loans and
loans from related parties were denominated in RMB
and subject to adjustment in accordance with relevant
regulations of the People’s Bank of China. The interest
rate of bank loans was adjusted to 2.96% to 3.50%
(2023: 3.5%) per annum, and the interest rate of loans
from related parties was adjusted to 3.45% to 3.70%
(2023: 3.45% to 3.70%) per annum.

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings,
shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company (as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) plus net debt. As at 31 December
2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was 45.05% (31
December 2023: 46.09%).

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
invested RMB188,477,000 (2023: RMB5,571,000)
mainly for the construction of the heat grid
construction of Anji Power Plant, the energy storage
project of Bluesky Power Plant as well as the costs
of technological renovation and maintenance of
equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB53,399,000 (31 December
2023: RMB275,655,000) mainly for the technological
renovation and maintenance of power generation units.

Pledge Of Assets

As of 31 December 2024, trade and other receivables
of RMB3,580,000 (2023: Nil) were pledged as security
for bank loans.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group had no
material contingent liability.

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group primarily operates its business in mainland
of the PRC and most of the transactions are settled
in RMB. Except for certain cash, bank balances and
borrowings that are denominated in HKD, the Group’s
assets and liabilities are mainly denominated in RMB.
The Group considers that its current foreign exchange
risk is insignificant and therefore has not hedged it
through any derivative for the time being. However, the
management of the Group will continue monitoring its
foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange risks should the need
arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of
278 employees, excluding 13 trainees (31 December
2023: 266 employees, excluding 2 trainees). For the
year ended 31 December 2024, total employees’
remuneration (including Directors’ remuneration and
benefits) was RMB27,603,000 (2023: RMB27,329,000).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. In addition, the Group
provides employees with training and benefits, such as
insurance, medical benefits and mandatory provident
fund contributions, with an aim to retain talents of all
levels for further contribution to the Group.

The Group’s contributions made to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are non-refundable and
cannot be used to reduce the future or existing level
of contribution of the Group should any forfeiture be
resulted from the schemes.

Prospects

2025 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy.
The cut in capacity tariff in Zhejiang Province and the
fluctuation of natural gas prices have brought a severe
test to the profitability of Puxing Energy. The Group will
closely follow the development of the electricity market,
actively study and explore new forms of business
models, strive to find new market convergence points,
step up the development of heating business, and
strengthen cost management, cooperate with the
continuous implementation of refined management and
strict cost control, actively face challenges, so as to
minimise the impact of policy and external economic
environment changes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Looking ahead, Chinese government will uphold its firm
commitment to the “double carbon” goal of peaking
carbon emission and achieving carbon neutrality,
resolutely accelerate in the development of new energy,
optimise its energy structure, and embark on a green,
low-carbon and circular development path. The fields
of green power, energy storage, and smart energy
will usher in a period of significant opportunities for
development, which will bring huge opportunities for
the Group for transforming into an integrated energy
supplier. As an energy company with energy as its
development core, with the goal of transforming into
an integrated energy supplier and achieving diversified
development of its energy business, the Group will
increase research on national new energy policies,
strive to find new opportunities, strive for different
types of energy projects, diversify its energy business
structure, and make unremitting efforts to enhance the
Group’s long-term growth potential and shareholder
value.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EFE NS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (“Mr. Guan”), aged 61, was
appointed as the chairman of the Board (the
“Chairman”), an executive Director, an authorised
representative of the Company (the “Authorised
Representative”) under rule 3.05 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Board (“Nomination Committee”) and a
member of the remuneration committee of the Board
(“Remuneration Committee”) in March 2024. Mr. Guan
graduated from Capital University of Economics and
Trade* (EH#BASE AZ) in 1998 with a Master’s degree
in Enterprise Management. He is currently a senior
economist and a member of the Communist Party of
China.

Since March 1980, Mr. Guan held various positions
in Wanxiang Group Corporation* (BREERXF)
(“Wanxiang Group”) and its subsidiaries, including
assistant to the general manager and director of
general manager’s office at Wanxiang Group, general
manager of Shenzhen Wanxiang Investment Co., Ltd.”
CEINBMIEEARRAT), chairman of the board
of directors of SAIC Wanxiang New Energy Coach
Co., Ltd.* (EAEBEMERZTERRAE), Dading
Petroleum Logistics Co., Ltd.* (KESHFEARER
7)), Wanxiang Doneed Co., Ltd.* (BAEERNE
FR/AT]) (Stock Code: 600371), and Shunfa Hengye
Corporation* (B8 A7) (Stock Code:
000631), chairman of the board of supervisors of
Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited* (&£ 817 B R
‘A7), senior executive vice president of the Wanxiang
Group, chairman of the board of directors, executive
director and financial officer of Wanxiang Qianchao Co.,
Ltd.* (B@iZ#ED /A5 (Stock Code: 000559), the
general manager and legal representative of Wanxiang
A123 Systems Corporation* (BE—_=K{H A7)
(“Wanxiang A123”), and director of Wanxiang Group.
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Mr. Guan currently holds various positions, such as
deputy secretary of the Party Committee of Wanxiang
Group, vice chairman of the board of directors of
Wanxiang A123, chairman of the board of directors,
legal representative and general manager of Shangwan
Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.* (E&EBREEFHE
EBRAR)), general manager of the branch company
of Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.* (BREEEE
/A7), party secretary of Hangzhou Wanxiang
Polytechnic* (fi )N & M B FE 2 T2 F3) , chairman of the
board of supervisors of Shunfa Hengye and Wanxiang
Finance Co., Ltd.* (BEMBEBERALE) (“Wanxiang
Finance”), chairman of the board of directors of
Wanxiang Resources Co., Ltd.* (BAEERBRAT),
supervisor of Shanghai Advanced Traction Battery
Systems Co., Ltd.* (LBEHBNBEHNRABRLARE)
and Karma (China) Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.*
(F3E (PEH) REZEHERRAE), executive director
of Karma Automotive LLC (KARMA (#13K) ;582
@), and supervisor of Mingsheng Charity Foundation*
(REEENAHEST). From October 2021 to
March 2025, Mr. Guan was a non-executive director
of Guangzhou Automobile Group Co., Ltd. (BEM;5E
EERMAERAET) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 2238).
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Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 56, joined the
Company in September 2015 as a non-executive
Director. Over the years serving in the Company,
Mr. Wei has been the Chairman, a non-executive
Director, an Authorised Representative, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is currently the executive
Director, an Authorised Representative and the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company, namely Puxing
Tian (HK) Limited, Puxing Xing (HK) Limited, Puxing
Neng (HK) Limited and Puxing An (HK) Limited.

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with a
master’s degree in management, majoring in business
administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years of experience
in corporate operations management and has held
various key management positions in Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. and its subsidiaries.
Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted as a director, the
president, an executive committee member, the
financial officer and the chief financial officer of
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Mr. Wei is currently a non-executive director of
Wanxiang Qianchao Co., Ltd. (BA#E#HRMDERE
‘AF)) (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange and ultimately controlled by Wanxiang
Group, stock code: 000559), a director of Shangwan
Clean Intelligent Vehicle Co., Ltd.* (F8BEREHHE
EFE/AT]), the vice chairman of the board of directors
of China Resources Puxing Electricity Vehicle Services
Co,. Ltd.* (EHEEEFHAERFAEMRAT), a
director, the general manager and legal representative
of Dading Petroleum Logistics Co., Ltd.* (KR Hf#EAE
FRAE)), the chairman of the board of directors and
legal representative of Dongzhan Shipping Co., Ltd.*
(REMERM AT, the chairman of the board of
directors of Dongzhan Shipping (Singapore) Co., Ltd.*
(GREME GrniE) BERAE), a director and the
general manager of Youshen Shipping (Hong Kong)
Co,. Ltd.* ChirffiiE (H#8) BRA8), a director and
the legal representative of Wanxiang Resources Co.,
Ltd.” (BEERARAE) and a director of KARMA
Automotive, Inc.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. YUAN Feng (“Mr. Yuan”), aged 40, was
appointed as a non-executive Director in March
2024 and re-designated as an executive Director
in June 2024. He graduated from Hubei University
of Technology* (#JE T % KZ) in 2008 with a
bachelor’'s degree in engineering, majoring in electronic
information engineering. He also obtained a master’s
degree in engineering in 2011, majoring in control
systems and control theory. He is currently a member
of the Communist Party of China.

From July 2011 to November 2012, Mr. Yuan worked
in the research and development department of the
Technology Center of Wanxiang Group* (BEEEA
B F AT OB 2 E6) . From November 2012 to January
2022, he worked in the chief and legal affairs office*
(HEEEFIIEST). From April 2015 to March
2022, he worked as the assistant to the chairman of
the board of directors of Minsheng Life Insurance Co.,

Lid." (REAFSFRERHBRAE).

Mr. Yuan currently holds various positions, such as the
vice general manager of Wanxiang Finance, director
of Zhejiang Property & Stock Exchange Co., Ltd.* (i
IE#RZZFARAT), chairman of the board of
directors, legal representative and general manager of
Xiang Sanchuang Co., Ltd.* (B =&IRMHDAF).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. WU Chongguo (“Mr. Wu”), aged 48, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee in June 2024.
He graduated from Tongji University in 1998 with
a Bachelor of Engineering in Mechanics. He also
graduated from Peking University in 2009 with a
Master’s degree in Accounting. Mr. Wu has been
recognised as a certified public accountant by The
Association of Certified Accountants in Zhejiang
Province* (I & ME TN E) with Zhejiang
Zhonghui Accounting Firm* i L (& & 5T A0 = #5F)
since July 2002. He is also currently a registered tax
agent by The Association of Certified Tax Accountants
in Zhejiang Province* (#1 & s MR BN 5 &) with
Zhejiang Huilian Taxation Co. Ltd.* G ;T B B #3756
EEFRERAT), a registered real estate appraiser
certified by Zhejiang Real Estate Appraisal and
Brokerage Association* (/LB EGEEELL AW
®), an asset appraiser certified by Zhejiang Asset
Appraisal Association* (I 2 & EFEHE), as well
as a registered land appraiser certified by Zhejiang
Association of Land Appraisers and Land Registration
Agents* (H/I & Lt EME T MELRIEBAGS).
He is currently a member of the China Association for
Promoting Democracy.

From July 1998 to March 2002, Mr. Wu served as a
manager of the real estate appraisal department of
Zhejiang Pan-China Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd.* G’ T X
REETEBRAT). From April 2002 to December
2007, Mr. Wu served as a deputy general manager
of Zhejiang Zhonghui Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd.* Gif
IHEEBEEFHBRAR). Since January 2008,
he has served as a chairman of Zhejiang Zhonglian
Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd.* G IHHBEEFEERA
&)). From June 2016 to January 2023, he served as
an independent director of Wanxiang Qianchao Co.,
Ltd.* (Bm#EEKRMDAE) (@ company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000559).
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Ms. WU Ying (“Ms. Wu”), aged 38, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee in
June 2024. She graduated from Zhejiang University in
2009 with a bachelor degree, majoring in Agricultural
and Forestry Economic Management. She also
graduated from the University of Sydney in 2011 with
a Master’'s degree in Business and Finance. She is
currently a certified financial risk manager by Global
Association of Risk Professionals.

From February 2012 to September 2016, Ms. Wu
worked at The Nielsen Company (a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: NLSN) in
the field of finance management training in Shanghai,
Hong Kong and New York, in the field of internal control
audit in the North America, and in the field of financial
planning and analysis in Shanghai. From October 2016
to May 2018, Ms. Wu worked at Taiping Science and
Technology Insurance Co., Ltd. (Hangzhou) in business
management. Since April 2019, she has worked at April
International in financial planning and analysis.

Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 62, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director and a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration degree, a Master of Arts
(Economics) degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr.
Yu is a Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently
a professor of City University of Hong Kong. Before
joining City University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a
professor of Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an assistant professor of the School of Business at
Queen’s University in Canada. Mr. Yu is currently
an independent non-executive director of Concord
Medical Services Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the New York Stock Exchange, stock code: CCM),
and an independent non-executive director of China
Bogi Environmental (Holding) Co., Ltd. (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02377).
From August 2017 to August 2023, Mr. Yu was an
independent non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers
Vacuum Containers Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 002615).
From June 2019 to June 2022, Mr. Yu also served
as an independent non-executive director of Richinfo
Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300634).

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

BFEZY (TRBLt)) 38w RZZZMER
BEZARBIFNTES FTNEES
TLEREBEREZEERIELEZEEEME
E’:‘:ggﬂﬁmﬁﬁ\ﬁﬁlﬁﬁ IVIE R LR
TI’EEﬂ 7FM§@”§@§¥°?EZDTE@Z$——
fbié*ﬂﬁ‘\%ﬁ%i)\iﬁ% Eﬂzﬁfﬂﬂﬁ
EIRAEM o

B —FZRAEZZ—RFENA B&
:tﬁ")ﬁﬁﬁm/_\ﬂ(The Nielsen Company) (—
MBANB SR B LT AR > BRHAK
'?')? NLSN)EH%%EJ:%S\%‘)%&%H%’J%%
MBEEEENEE TIEERSAEETE
BT EBRERBHEEDMER B
Z—RE+BEEZZE-N\FHEA>RZ2LZLIR
i(:FﬂBEﬁIK RSB AB (M) REXEHBE
cBIE— nﬁmﬁt’ﬁﬁ%pm%lmpm
Intemahonal)%%ﬁa‘a’“nJrilJi—i axinkd

EIBEE (TeaikE)) 2l N _E—_F
NEBEZXABIUIENITEE " BEZEET
HEMREZEESHE AINEREIBE
BELB - KEBYSEITEMNNRE/ME
BB o ERNTEMD *ﬁﬁfﬁ’iﬂﬁfﬁﬁ
EARANMAEZEHZ -MAETEIMMAER > 6y
%ifi%%ﬁljﬁ%%ﬂ%&ﬂﬂikg):k
BRaRBERE st EIREHALE
G EmRaZNnEEERFRAT (Hy
ZR5E CCM) MBI IEITES MBS £
TRAFTEETIRFR ER) BRAE REM
5% 0 02377) WEILIERNTEE - RZTE—+
fﬁ}\ﬁ E_ETFENB s EEEFY

ARG Em AR IKREH AT
Tﬁﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ (A2 19 1CHE © 002615) E’Jé%_ﬁﬁﬂ
TEFE RN _E—HNENAE_E - _FX
B e ENEEFRINBERZZM LT AT
EARRERDBRAD (BREARH © 300634)
BB IEHITES



The Directors are pleased to submit their report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the development, operation and management of
power plants fueled by natural gas in the PRC. Details
of the activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 7 to 12 and pages 13 to 28 of this annual
report, respectively. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 13 to 28 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC and
is aware of its responsibility towards environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and the society, has
continuously input resources and implemented the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.
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For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) report to be issued before
end of April 2025.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules
on the corporate level. Each of the committees of
the Board has its own terms of reference defining its
respective rights, duties and obligation. The Board
adopted a code of conduct as its code of conduct
for securities transactions (the “Code of Conduct”)
regarding the securities transactions of the Directors
and relevant employees (as defined in code provision
C.1.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out
in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

At the operational level, the Group conducted
its business in accordance with, among others,
the Electric Power Law of the PRC and all other
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC in relation
to the electric power industry, energy conservation,
environmental protection and safety production. In
addition, all business units of the Group have acted in
compliance with the local labour laws and regulations.
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During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or
noncompliance with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group which has a significant impact on its
business and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and support its development.
To enhance its competitiveness, the Group aims
at delivering high quality services to its customers
continuously. During the year, there was no material
or significant dispute between the Group and its
stakeholders.

For further information about the Group’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2024,
please refer to the ESG report to be issued before end
of April 2025.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The
Group has been focusing on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding
and addressing the concerns of stakeholders, and
accepting them in an informed way. Details of the risk
management framework of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report, and the key risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group are listed below:
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Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies of
natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on natural
gas as fuel source which is currently provided by
only one to two suppliers. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, costs of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the ZDRC, an increase
in natural gas costs will increase the operating cost
of the Group and may adversely affect its profitability.
If, in the future, the government authorities decide to
increase the prices of natural gas, but not the on-grid
tariffs, or the on-grid tariffs are not adjusted accordingly
in a timely manner, or the rate of increase in on-grid
tariffs is less than the rate of increase in the prices of
natural gas, the Group will not be able to pass on the
increased costs to its customers, and may adversely
affect its profitability.
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Following the gradual opening of the natural gas market
and pipe network facilities in the PRC since 2020,
the Group will actively follow up relevant information,
communicate with other natural gas suppliers on the
premise of not affecting the overall situation of the
Dual Tariff Policy, and strive to allow enterprises to
organise high-quality low-cost gas sources into the
provincial pipe network by multi-channels to reduce its
production costs.

Risk relating to change in policies in relation to
electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province has been one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform. The change of
electricity retail market policies created opportunities
for the Group to expand and diversify its customer
base. However, the operations of the Group may also
be affected by entering the electricity retail market,
such as increased complexity of the business mode,
market fluctuation of exchange tariffs and other factors.
The Group will actively follow policy guidance, intensify
the research on state policies, and take various
measures to assess the risks and benefits that may
affect the Group by changes in the electricity market so
as to seize the opportunities resulted from the relevant
risks.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

In September 2021, the PRC government announced
a reduction of incentives to the Group with effect from
1 January 2022 which adversely affected both the
revenue and profit of the Group. Despite the latest
policies implemented and incentives provided by the
PRC government are still favourable to the business of
the Group, if such policies and incentives are further
reduced or are no longer available in the future, the
financial results of the Group may be further adversely
affected.
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Risk relating to funding adequacy

With the Group’s objective to transform into an
integrated energy supplier, funding adequacy will have
an increasing impact on the Group’s operations and
development. The financial market is affected by a
number of factors such as the economic environment,
prevailing market sentiment and the liquidity of the
lending market. The Group always leverages its
capability of accessing the PRC and overseas markets
to optimise its funding sources, increase its credit
facilities and lower its financing costs. The Group
has also adopted various cost-saving and efficiency
enhancement initiatives to its business management
to minimise its administrative and operating expenses.
Despite the funding risks of the Group has been
reduced by the financial services framework agreement
(“Financial Services Agreement”) entered into between
the Group and Wanxiang Finance, the Group may
still consider raising funds from different sources to
ensure the Group can develop and operate towards its
objective when necessary.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilisation of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings to
improve its net current liabilities position or settle the
short-term bank loans and other borrowings with long-
term loans. There can be no assurance that the Group
will always be able to raise the necessary finance by
borrowing from banks and other financial institutions
to finance its business, operations and capital
expenditure. In the event that the existing banking and
credit facilities do not continue to extend with similar or
more favourable facilities to the Group and the Group
fails to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities on
reasonable terms, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.

Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain risks arising from
financial instruments, such as credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk. Details of these risks are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2024 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 102 to 211 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Group has completed the disposal of certain
assets and is in a position to pay dividends. However,
due to the significant operation challenges, it is
necessary to reserve funds for business transformation.
Meanwhile, the liability ratio is still relatively high,
and it is necessary to repay debts to reduce financial
expenses, so as to enhance the value of the Company
and shareholders’ returns in the long run.

The Board recommends to pay a final dividend
of HK$0.014 per share (2023: HK$0) for the year
ended 31 December 2024. Proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid in due course, subject to approval
by shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

There is no arrangement that a Shareholder has waived
or agreed to waive any dividend.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND CLOSURE
OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The notice of the forthcoming annual general meeting,
which contains the date, time and place of the
forthcoming annual general meeting, as well as details
of the period during which the register of members
and the registration of share transfers is closed, will
be published and despatched to the shareholders who
request a printed copy in due course.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 212 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s securities listed on the Stock Exchange,
including sales or transfer of treasury shares (as defined
in the Listing Rules).

As at 31 December 2024, the Company did not held
any treasury shares.

SHARES ISSUED

No Share was issued during the year. Details of the
Shares issued by the Company are set out in note 24(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 24(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page
107 of this report, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant
to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account and the contributed surplus
account of the Company can be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
provided that immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. Accordingly, based on the
future projection of the Group’s profit and cash inflows
from operations, the credit facilities available and the
ability of the Group to obtain or renew bank loans and
other financing facilities, the Directors believes that
the Group will generate sufficient cash flows to meet
its liabilities as and when fall due in the next twelve
months. Accordingly, the Directors determined that
the distributable reserves of the Company (including
share premium, contributed surplus and accumulated
losses of the Company) as at 31 December 2024 was
RMB293,049,000 (2023: RMB303,851,000).

DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2024.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Shares.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2024, 93.23% and
98.45% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to
the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, and 47.41% and 100% of the Group’s
purchase (not including purchases of capital nature)
were attributable to the largest supplier and the only
four suppliers of the Group.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders, who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company, had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
(appointed on 4 March 2024)

Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman)
(retired on 4 March 2024)

Mr. WEI Junyong

Mr. YUAN Feng
(re-designated from a non-executive
Director on 3 June 2024)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. YUAN Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024, and
re-designated as an executive director on
3 June 2024)

Ms. LI Yunjuan (appointed on 3 June 2024 and
resigned on 30 December 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Chongguo (appointed on 3 June 2024)
Ms. WU Ying (appointed on 3 June 2024)

Mr. TSE Chi Man (resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. YAO Xianguo (resigned on 3 June 2024)
Mr. YU Wayne W.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE i

FTEERRMERD

BHE_SE_NE+-_A=+—HILEE @&
EEINEM93.23%5%98.45% D 2R B AN E
ERARPRRAATL MALEBEFRELRE (R
BIEEAMENRE) 1947.41% 5% 100%]5 3%
BRAEENRAHERRESRWIUEHE
|{,£]o

FRN EF HEEBMBANBESAAEM
REARRBBEITRAS%U LR RBES
BLFERR RHEEINERED-

EE
FAKRBERABRSAHNESOT -

BITES
ERRLE (EEFER)
(MNZE_NF=FNHEET)
BRLZRN&E (EFR)
(MRZE-_WE=ZBMNARMET)
MBEBLE
RELE
(R -_Z - UENB=ZHBIFNTEERAD

JERITES

REEE (RN E_NE=ZANBESZTF
WHRZEZWFEAB=HRES
WITES)

ERE MR _E_NERB=ZHESE:
AZE_ONE+ "B =+HED

BIFRTES
SEEEE (RSB MEAA = ABSE)
REL+ (KB -MEAS = BESD)
SRE AR (RSB ME A = B EHE)
oS (R =2 M A A = B BHE)
SRl st

ZEREFRAT | —E-mEFERS

45



46

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERS

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are set out on pages 29 to 34 of this
annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after such
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at
such meeting.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the

AGM will be set out in circular to the Shareholders to
be despatched prior to the AGM.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies was a party or were parties
and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to review by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board from time
to time with reference to the Directors’ performance,
experience, duties and responsibilities, the prevailing
market conditions of the industry and the Group’s
remuneration policy, operating performance and
profitability with the approval from the Board. Details of
the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There was no emolument paid by the Group to any of
the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises five individuals.
Details of the highest paid individuals are set out in
note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2024. In addition, the Company has taken out and
kept in force appropriate directors’ liabilities insurance
coverage for the Directors and senior managements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

EFME

EEXENEREHNEZEERESTE KRS
EENRE KR BBRBE EARANER
MR RAEERNHER CERBRER
FENBETRS UKEEGHEFE-EF
MEFBEN GG M B RERMEES

FEEREREANESIHEAME  FH
A0 A7 5 (88 3 0 A 7= 2 [ B B9 252 B o 1R 745 B
B E-

hs&EEHAL

FRAERRZRRSHATEERLREAC
e ALHFBHNGEMBHREM T

EEFFRmMERX

—ENEERTm ANEEFBERX (E
EREBREGRAIE467H) REER BN
BE_Z_NF+_A=+—HLEEEMHK
FEEM I ARBDERESTREFEGER
BUNESEAEBREEASSERRE-

BEEEL

FROBBEILNFEEANEEEAATES
NEFMEREFBMHEERITHREL -



DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2024, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company (“Chief Executive”) or any of their
spouses or children under 18 years old had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors or
Chief Executive were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (i) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive,
as at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other
than Directors or Chief Executives) had, or were taken
or deemed to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which are required to
be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/

Percentage of

Capacity/ underlying shares issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests held " capital™*?
LB RT
B3,/ FRISARS, 4R Rds o
ARRBTE s RRipEE "= Bt
Puxing International Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
= 2 B R EmiEm
Anergy International e 2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
73 AE [ R (E2) ZEEAEER
Wanxiang Group ot¢ 2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
B E ) RGBT
Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (rete2) Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
BRERLE (854 e RGBT
Ms. Li Li (oted Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
FEE L+ W= AoBiEm
BC Greater China Opportunities Beneficial interest 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%
Fund SPC - BC New Energy
Fund SP (“BC Fund SPC”)
WERFPERBES BatEnm
(—BC New Energy Fund SP
FBC Fund SPC )
BC Capital Group Limited ®ote 4 Interests in a controlled 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%

BC Capital Group Limited ##4)

corporation
RiEEE T
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
Shares.

These Shares are held by Puxing International, which is owned as
to 100% by Anergy International, which is owned as to 100% by
Wanxiang Group which in turn is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu.
Therefore, Anergy International, Wanxiang Group and Mr. Lu are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Puxing International.

Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said Shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

These Shares are held by BC Fund SPC. BC Fund SPC is owned as
to 100% by BC Asset Management Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 100% by BC Capital Group Limited. BC Capital Group Limited
is owned as to 68% by Fullsun International Capital Limited.

The percentage of issued share capital is calculated based on the
total number of 458,600,000 shares in issue as at 31 December
2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
Chief Executives) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2024.
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TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES

During the year, the Group conducted certain related
party transactions as set out in note 27 to the
consolidated financial statements. Some of these
transactions constitute “connected transaction” (“CT”")
and “continuing connected transactions” (“CCT”) as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of
the CT and CCT are summarized below:

Connected Transaction

Set out below is information in relation to the CT
of the Group, particulars of which were previously
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
30 December 2024, the circular of the Company
dated 24 January 2025 and the announcement of
the Company dated 17 February 2025. Full text of
the announcements and circular can be found in the
“‘Announcements and Circulars” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

On 30 December 2024, Puxing Neng (HK) Limited
(the “Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, SHUNFA HENGNENG Corporation* (JIg2s
18 BERR (DA B)) (the “Purchaser”) and Deneng Power
Plant, entered into the an equity transfer agreement,
pursuant to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to
sell, and the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire,
51% of the equity interest in Deneng Power Plant at
the consideration of RMB142,720,000, subject to the
terms and conditions of the equity transfer agreement.
Upon the completion of the disposal, Deneng Power
Plant would cease to be a subsidiary of the Company.
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The shares of the Purchaser are listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code: 000631) which were
owned as to approximately 62.28% by Wanxiang
Group, as at the date of entering into the equity transfer
agreement, which in turn is ultimately controlled by Mr.
Lu Weiding, the ultimate controller of the Company.
Accordingly, the Purchaser was a connected person of
the Company and the Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio (as defined
in the Listing Rules) in respect of the Disposal exceeds
25% but is less than 75%, the Disposal constitutes a
major and connected transaction of the Company and
is therefore subject to the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapters 14 and 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. Zhejiang Province is promoting the reform
of the electricity spot market and the capacity price
reduction policy, which has brought challenges to
the Group’s business model and profitability. The
Company’s management team actively researches and
explores business models under new forms, strives to
find new market convergence points, and is committed
to achieving strategic transformation. The Company
intends to use the proceeds from the Disposal to
develop its energy-related business and/or other
upstream and downstream businesses that generate
synergies with the Company’s main business and are
strategically aligned with the Company, by acquiring
or investing in the business or companies engaged in
the same business, as opportunities arise. The Group
believes that the Disposal will provide the Group with
the opportunity to unlock the value of its natural gas
power plant holdings, supplement its current working
capital and provide immediate funding for the Group’s
future business development, which will help to
enhance the Company’s negotiating power and reduce
transaction time and costs when opportunities arise.
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NON-EXEMPT CCT

Set out below is information in relation to the non-
exempt CCT of the Group, particulars of which were
previously disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 March 2022 and the circular of
the Company dated 18 May 2022. Full text of the
announcements and circular can be found in the
“Announcements and Circulars” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

On 30 March 2022, the Company entered into the New
Financial Services Agreement with Wanxiang Finance,
pursuant to which Wanxiang Finance agreed to provide
certain financial services, including, inter alia, deposit
services to the Group in accordance with the terms and
conditions set out in the Financial Services Agreement.
According to the Financial Services Agreement, the
aggregate maximum daily balance (including interests)
maintained by the Group with Wanxiang Finance should
not exceed RMB250,000,000 for the three years
ending 31 December 2025.

As at the date of signing of the Financial Services
Agreement, Wanxiang Finance was a subsidiary of
Wanxiang Group, the controlling Shareholder indirectly
interested in approximately 65.42% of the issued share
capital of the Company. Accordingly, Wanxiang Group
and Wanxiang Finance are both connected persons of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated
under the Financial Services Agreement constituted
CCT of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and were subject to reporting, announcement,
annual review and the independent Shareholders’
approval.
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The aggregate maximum daily balance (including
interests) maintained by the Group with Wanxiang
Finance during the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately RMB127,027,000 (2023:
RMB144,644,000).

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive Directors (“INEDs”), has
reviewed the CCT and confirmed that the CCT were:

(i)

(ii

(i)

entered into by the Group in its ordinary and usual
course of businesses;

conducted on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable than those available to or
from independent third parties; and

entered into in accordance with the agreements
governing the CCT on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, including the INEDs, also confirmed that:

(i)

(i)

the aggregate maximum daily balance (including
interests) maintained by the Group with
Wanxiang Finance during the year ended 31
December 2024 did not exceed the annual cap
amount of RMB250,000,000 as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 30 March
2022; and

the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
abovementioned CCT in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (revised),
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (revised), “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The
Company’s auditor has issued its unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
CCT of the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditor confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the CCT:

()  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) were not entered into, in all material respects,
in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

(i)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

Related Party Transactions

Other transactions as set out in the section headed
“Related Party Transactions” in note 27(a) to the
consolidated financial statements constituted CCT of
the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
and were fully exempt from the Shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under
Rules 14A.90 and 14A.95 of the Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this annual report.

AUDITOR

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the
Company’s auditor is KPMG. The financial statements
set out in this annual report have been audited by
KPMG. There has been no change in auditor of the
Company in the preceding three years.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

At the extraordinary general meeting held on 17
February 2025, a major and connected transaction to
approve the disposal of 51% equity interest in Deneng
Power Plant by the Company to SHUNFA HENGNENG
Corporation* (JEZZ18RERRIBAE]) at a consideration
of RMB142,720,000 was approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company by way of an ordinary
resolution. Upon completion of the relevant disposal,
Deneng Power Plant ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company. For details, please refer to the circular
of the Company dated 27 January 2025 and the
announcement of the Company dated 30 December
2024 and the announcement of poll results of the
extraordinary general meeting dated 17 February 2025,
respectively.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EE i

RIFNRRIFTRE

REBEARABDIABERNEN RLESF
M RBE_Z_NF+_A=+—HI%E
BFERBSEAFRAN ARTEMHER L
TRAEENARITRE

P2 E M

B ZE2024F12B31 B FE > AR T ZH

MAEEEHESAMEBR - AEFEERSFIH

H?J%“%E%EEEE%%J’JZ StEMSEHPRE ST 1Y
BE=ZFLUIRAAB AN EEH -

EREEXS

KATBREES (EREEY)) DBEA
EEHE_S-_NE+_A=+—HLEE
EIEEL L

REHABEIE

RZE_AF"B+tHBTZREFRK
ﬁ zk@ﬂé%iﬂﬁ%b(%i_/\uﬁmi_ ?HZ/&
KABENEZBERD R HEBREER
S1%RENTERBERS ﬁﬁ%AE%
142,720,000 o tHESHH E A 1B > EEE B K
TBEARRTINKE RS ﬁ%%%%xﬁ
BHMA—E-_AF—BZ+tHZBRK
ﬁ@TE%%_E_EE+:HE+Em@
ERAPATE " AE_ A+t HNKREYE
MAREREBER A G-

I
]
i
D
o

AT | cE-mEFERE

57



.. :n.:

58

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

Save as aforesaid and as otherwise disclosed in this
annual report, there are no significant events occurred
after the end of the reporting period and up to the date
of this annual report.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Executive Director

28 March 2025
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximise
operational efficiency, corporate values and
Shareholders’ returns. The Company has adopted and
applied the principles of the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules.
The Company will continue to upgrade its internal
control system, strengthen its risk management and
reinforce its corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with the code provisions
set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct as its
code of conduct for securities transactions in respect
of the Directors’ and relevant employees’ dealings in
the securities of the Company on terms no less than
the required standard in the Model Code as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules .

The Company has made specific enquiries to all
Directors regarding the compliance with the Code
of Conduct. All Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the
Code of Conduct throughout the year ended 31
December 2024.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS =

BOARD COMPOSITION ERgER
o O R O Independent
a(ecutlve Directors ;l'%g%__?g%utlve Director non- executlve Directors
BIIERIT
Gender
YR Male B4 Female & 1%
5 Directors 5% %% 1 Director 12 &ESH
Ethnicit
Eﬁgmc' y Chinese HE
6 Directors 6235
;‘-"ﬁ;g%ﬁ”p 36 - 40 46-50  56-60 61-65

2 Directors 2% 1 Director 14E% 1 Director 12E%E

Directorship with the Company
RAEATNEEHT

(Number of years)
(F5R)

<2
4 Directors 42 %%

Energy industry

experience
AERIT A R
'~._. .
Executive
management and
leadership skills _Board )
THEE R EERAE Expertise and Skills
EREEMEX
ok 3
® ﬂlu&&ﬁﬁ: ....'
Mainland market
expertise
Eiln e Sk
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The Board currently comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)
Mr. WEI Junyong
Mr. YUAN Feng

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024, and
re-designated as an executive director on
3 June 2024)

Ms. LI Yunjuan (appointed on 3 June 2024 and
resigned on 30 December 2024)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WU Chongguo
Ms. WU Ying
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. There are three
INEDs and at least one of them possesses appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs represent at least
one-third of the Board as required by rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. The executive Directors and the Senior
Management have extensive management experience
in the Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
Senior Management are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 29 to 34
of this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of
skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Board and the Management

The Board, who is responsible for leadership and
control of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of the ESG of the Group. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group’s business to the
executive Directors and the Management in which
the Management should report back or obtain prior
approval of the Board. Management for the purpose
of this report refers to the Senior Management whose
biographical details are disclosed in this annual report,
and all general managers, deputy general managers
and departmental heads. Management is responsible
for the day-to-day operations, management and
administration of the Group under the leadership of the
executive Directors. They also execute and implement
strategies and directions determined by the Board.
Management may be invited to attend Board meetings
to report and engage in discussion with the Board in
respect of strategy, budget planning, progress and
performance updates. This is to ensure that the Board
can have a general understanding of the Group’s
business so that they can make informed decisions
for the benefit of the Group. Management is required
to answer any questions or challenges posed by the
Board. All Directors have separate and independent
access to the Management whenever necessary.
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Mechanisms to Ensure Independent Views and
Input are Available to the Board

During the year, after reviewing the structure and
composition of the Board, as well as the qualifications,
dedications, participation, and contributions of each
independent director, the Board of the Company hereby
unanimously confirms that the current mechanisms of
the Company can ensure independent views and input
are available to the Board continuously.

The current channels to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board of the Company mainly
include:

The Board shall comprise one half of the
independent directors, and each independent
director actively participates in the Board
meetings of the Company and the meetings and
affairs of the subordinate board committees, fully
expressing their independent views and opinions;
and

According to the service contract of each
Director, each Director (including independent
directors) may, when necessary, engage external
legal or other professional consultants to obtain
independent views.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision C.2.1 of part 2 of the CG Code,
the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Chairman and the Chief Executive (i.e.
the general manager of the Company) are separately
held by Mr. GUAN Dayuan and Mr. YUAN Feng,
respectively.

The Chairman provides leadership to, and oversee
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Group, and the Chief
Executive has the overall responsibility for carrying out
the strategy and direction set by the Board and for
managing the Group’s business.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held eight meetings. Notices for
regular Board meetings are given to each Director at
least fourteen days prior to the meeting whereby the
Directors can put forward their proposed items into the
agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board papers
are then circulated to the Directors at least three
days before the Board meeting in order to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision C.2.7 of part 2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
should at least annually hold meetings with INEDs
without the presence of other Directors (the “Chairman
and INEDs Meeting”). During the year, a Chairman and
INEDs Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s
general meetings, the meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee held during the year are set out
below:

ERRNUREFHERNR
EFHEFRRTHATIRRERS
EREES FHEEERRERLEES
SR %ﬁu LI

P
&
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Audit Remuneration Nomination

General Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EXg EBRZET FMWZERE RREZEE
REAE L 8@ 8@ gd
Executive Directors
HniTES
Mr. GUAN Dayuan
(appointed on 4 March 2024) i 7/8 N/A 3/4 3/4
ERREE
RZE_ME=ANHEZT) 1 7/8 TEA 3/4 3/4
Mr. XU Anliang (retired on 4 March 2024) N/A 1/8 N/A 1/4 1/4
RERAE
(R_Z2_ME=AMNAERMA) TER 1/8 TER 1/4 1/4
Mr. WEI Junyong 1/1 8/8 N/A N/A N/A
BHOELE 1 8/8 B TER TER
Mr. YUAN Feng (re-designated from a non-executive
Director on 3 June 2024) 11 7/8 N/A N/A N/A
RERE WMZEZMEAAZBHIFERNTESAD 11 7/8 TER TER TEMA
Non-executive Director
EHTES
Ms. LI Yunjuan
(appointed on 3 June 2024 and resigned on
30 December 2024) 1/1 4/8 N/A N/A N/A
FERRL
RZZ2_NFE A=HEZME K_2_HNF
+ZA=+H#A) 1 4/8 TBA TER TER
INEDs
BIEHTES
Mr. WU Chongguo (appointed on 3 June 2024) 11 4/8 1/3 1/4 N/A
BRELE RZTZNERA=HEZD 11 4/8 1/3 1/4 TER
Mr. TSE Chi Man (resigned on 3 June 2024) N/A 4/8 2/3 3/4 N/A
BENRE (RZEZMFA=ZHFD) B 4/8 2/3 3/4 TR
Ms. WU Ying (appointed on 3 June 2024) 11 4/8 1/3 1/4 1/4
REZL (RZZZMNE A=HEZD) 11 4/8 1/3 1/4 1/4
Mr. YAO Xianguo (resigned on 3 June 2024) N/A 4/8 2/3 3/4 3/4
PhTElEE (RZ2ZME B =HEHD) ENELE 4/8 2/3 3/4 3/4
Mr. YU Wayne W. 1/1 8/8 3/3 N/A 4/4
ARELE 1 8/8 3/3 ~ER 4/4

I
]
i
D
o

AT | cE-mEFERE

65



66

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERKRS

Relationship amongst Directors

There are no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships amongst the Board
members and in particular, between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive.

Non-executive Directors

The term of appointment of all non-executive Directors
(including INEDs) are three years, subject to early
termination in accordance with the Company’s Articles
of Association, Listing Rules or applicable laws and
regulations. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association, one-third of the Directors (including non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Independence of INEDs

Mr. Yu Wayne W., an INED, has served the Board for
over nine years. While this could be relevant to the
determination of independence of the relevant INEDs,
it is well-recognised that an individual’s independence
cannot be determined arbitrarily on the basis of a
set period of time. In assessing the independence of
the INEDs, the Board and the Nomination Committee
considered the individual Directors’ character, integrity
and judgement as demonstrated by their commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of
service and their willingness to continuously exercise
their independent judgement and to provide the
Company with their objective views. The Board and the
Nomination Committee are of the view that there is no
indication or evidence that the length of their services
has any adverse impact on their independence and the
Company has benefited greatly from their contribution
and valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company, and believe that their
experience and skills can bring valuable contribution
to the diversity of the Board. In determining the
independence of the INEDs, the Board and the
Nomination Committee followed the guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has
received confirmation of independence pursuant to the
factors set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from
each of the INEDs, namely Mr. WU Chongguo, Ms.
WU Ying and Mr. YU Wayne W., and concluded that all
INEDs are independent as there is no business or other
relationship which could affect their ability to discharge
their duties independently.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Directors
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.
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On 31 January 2024, Mr. GUAN Dayuan and Mr. YUAN
Feng, after having obtained relevant legal advice from
a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on Hong Kong
law, confirmed that they understand their obligations
as a director of a listed issuer under Rule 3.09D of the
Listing Rules.

On 31 May 2024, Ms. LI Yunjuan, Mr. WU Chongguo
and Ms. WU Ying, after having obtained relevant legal
advice from a firm of solicitors qualified to advise on
Hong Kong law, confirmed that they understand their
obligations as a director of a listed issuer under Rule
3.09D of the Listing Rules.

The Directors are kept informed on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuous
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.
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During the year, the Company has coordinated training
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According
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to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors BHEERRE)
participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:
Type of CPD
FESELRER
Reading
materials
Attending relevant to the
training Company or
courses its business
FI:EHEE AT
HEEBHER
BhNiEENERTRE AR
Mr. GUAN Dayuan BRRLE v/ 4
Mr. XU Anliang BREZRETE v/ v
Mr. WEI Junyong MHEBAE v/ v
Mr. YUAN Feng RIESRE v/ v
Ms. LI Yunjuan FEBRLL v/ v
Mr. WU Chongguo SR B & 4 4
Mr. TSE Chi Man HEEE 4 4
Ms. Wu Ying SFELT v/ v
Mr. YAO Xianguo ok o B ST A 4 4
Mr. YU Wayne W. A EIE L 4 4
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board established three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Members
of the Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. WU Chongguo (Chairman)
Ms. WU Ying
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs, and at
least one of them possesses appropriate professional
gualifications or sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and experience to fulfil his
duties.
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The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to
their duties relating to financial and other reporting,
risk management, internal controls, external and
internal audits and assisting the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing independent review and
supervision of financial reporting, and by satisfying
itself as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of
the Group and as to the adequacy of the external and
internal audits.

During the year, the Audit Committee held three
meetings. The attendance records are set out under
the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.
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At the meetings, the Audit Committee performed,
inter alia, the following: (i) confirmed and approved the
terms of employment and remuneration of KPMG for
the year 2023; (ii) confirmed and agreed to the report
on the audit plan and strategy submitted by KPMG
for the year ended 31 December 2023; (iii) reviewed
the independence of KPMG and the effectiveness
of its audit procedures; (iv) reviewed the preliminary
draft annual result announcement of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year 2023, and reported
its recommendations to the Board; (v) considered
and reviewed the effectiveness of all major monitoring
(including financial monitoring, operational monitoring,
and compliance monitoring) of the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems for the
year ended 31 December 2023, and reported its
recommendations to the Board; (vi) reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, and financial reporting functions; (vii)
considered and made recommendation to the Board
on the re-appointment of KPMG as the auditors of
the Company, and reviewed the effectiveness of
pre—agreed non-audit services to be provided by
the auditors without communicating with the Audit
Committee and obtaining separate consent for each
service; (viii) reviewed and confirmed the CCT of the
Company and reported to the Board in accordance
with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules; and (ix) reviewed
the draft interim results announcement and draft interim
report for the six months ended 30 June 2024 of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
and reported its recommendations to the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee
are:

Ms. WU Ying (Chairman)
Mr. GUAN Dayuan
Mr. WU Chongguo

The Remuneration Committee is made up of two
INEDs and the Chairman, and is chaired by an INED.
The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board
in relation to the remuneration packages and benefits
of the Directors and the Senior Management to ensure
that the relevant individuals are fairly rewarded in light
of their contribution to the Company with reference
to their performance, and that they receive suitable
incentives to maintain high standards of performance
and to improve the Group’s and their own performance,
and to review and/or approve matters relating to
share schemes under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
In connection with the review of the remuneration
package, no Director shall be involved in deciding his
own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held four
meeting. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.
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At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
performed, inter alias, the following: (i) discussed
and reviewed the overall remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and Senior Management and
recommended to the Board; (i) discussed and reviewed
the performance of executive Directors and Senior
Management and recommended to the Board; (iii)
discussed and reviewed the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and Senior Management
and recommended to the Board; (iv) discussed and
reviewed the terms of service contracts of executive
Directors and Senior Management and recommended
to the Board; (v) discussed and reviewed the
terms of service contracts for retired Directors and
recommended to the Board.

Remuneration paid to the Senior Management

No remuneration was paid to the Senior Management
for the year ended 31 December 2024.

None of the Senior Management held any share
interests of the Company during the year.

Nomination Committee

The current members of the Nomination Committee
are:

Mr. GUAN Dayuan (Chairman)

Ms. WU Ying
Mr. YU Wayne W.
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The Nomination Committee is made up of two INEDs
and the Chairman, and is chaired by the Chairman.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of INEDs annually; and (v) deciding
whether or not a Director is able to and has adequately
carried out his duties as a Director.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirement of the Company’s business. The Board
will continue to apply the principle of appointments
on a merit basis with due regards for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members as a whole. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. At
the end of the reporting period, the gender ratio of all
employees (including Senior Management) of the Group
was 79.14% male: 20.86% female. The Company
is committed to maintaining gender diversity among
employees and providing them with an equal work
environment and opportunities.
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Nomination Policy

The Group has adopted a nomination policy which is
disclosed as below:

1. Objective

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors, and
succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to
the Shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies.

The nomination policy provides the key
selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making such
recommendations.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

When making recommendations regarding
the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation
the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(@) Reputation for integrity;

(b) Commitment in respect of sufficient
time and relevant interests;
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2.2

(c) Diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, ethnicity, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industrial
experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(d) The strength of the candidate and the
contributions that can be made to the
Board,;

(e) Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of INED; and

(f)  Any other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to
time, as considered appropriate.

The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’s
Article of Association, the laws of the
Cayman lIslands, the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

2.2
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3.

Nomination Procedures

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

In the context of appointment of
anyproposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will deploy multiple
channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including without limitation
referral from Directors, Shareholders,
Management, advisers of the Company and
external executive search firms or through
internal promotion of senior employees.
The Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations forthe
Board’s consideration and approval.

In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will review the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring
Directors and also determine whether the
retiring Directors continue to meet the
selection criteria set out in the nomination
policy. The Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

For the procedures for Shareholders’
nomination of any proposed candidate
for election as a Director, please refer to
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director” set out in
“Corporate Governance” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.
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4. Approval and Review of the Nomination
Policy

The nomination policy has been approved by the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy. Any subsequent amendment of
the nomination policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the
Board.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held
four meeting. The attendance record is set out
under the section headed “Number of meetings
and Directors’ attendance” in this report.

At the meeting, the Nomination Committee
performed, inter alias, the following: (i) assessed
the independence of INEDs; (i) considered re-
electing Directors; (iii) reviewed the structure,
size, and composition of the Board of the
Company (including skills, knowledge, and
experience), and considered the nomination of
two new independent director by the Nomination
Committee to the Board.

Nomination of Candidates

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board’s composition and nominated Mr. GUAN
Dayuan and Mr. WEI Junyong to the Board for it to
recommend to the Shareholders for re-election at
the annual general meeting held at 27 June 2025.
The nomination was made after taken into account
the respective contribution of the retiring Directors
to the Board and the skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of
the retiring Directors, with due regard for the benefits of
Board diversity.
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Corporate Governance Functions

During the year, the Board has carried out its duties
and responsibilities as set out in code provision A.2.1
of part 2 of the CG Code including (i) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; (i) reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and the Senior Management; (iii)
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to the employees of the
Company and the Directors (if any); and (v) reviewing
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flows in the
relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance with
appropriate International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards and the related
interpretations, and made adjustments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.
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As at 31 December 2024, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB229,592,000. In view of
the circumstance, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Based on the future projection of the Group’s profit
and cash inflows from operations, the credit facilities
available and the ability of the Group to obtain or renew
bank loans and other financing facilities, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient cash
flows to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that there are no material uncertainties related
to the events or conditions which, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 92 to 101 of this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION Z BN &
During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG, FRARBEZEMEEH S MERE
provided to the Company the following services: KABREU TR -
RMB’000
ARETR
Audit service BEtIRT
Review of 2024 interim financial report, audit BRI UFP AR RS B2
of financial statements for the year ended E_E_WE+_"_A=+—H
31 December 2024 and review of preliminary IEEFEEMNPTERRUALEBES
results announcements and the CCT (XENEREAEERFERERS
of the Group 1,500
Non-audit services 3'5""??'1'!&?%
Consultation services for the preparation “EONFRE - HEREARS
of 2024 ESG report R B AR TS 150
Professional services on major disposal THHEEEEEEMR S1%RENTEHE
transactions related to the disposal of 51% RN EZERTE
equity in Deneng Power Plant 470
2,120
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has engaged an external professional
company, SWCS Corporate Services Group
(HongKong) Limited (“SWCS”), as the company
secretary service provider to provide the Group with
corporate secretarial services to assist the Group
in responding to the constantly changing regulatory
environment and meeting different business needs.
All directors can obtain advice and services from the
company secretary on corporate governance and
Board practices and matters.

From 14 December 2023, Mr. Chung Ming Fai (“Mr.
Chung”), the representative of SWCS Corporate
Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (“SWCS”), has
been appointed as the Company Secretary of the
Company. Mr. Chung is a senior president of SWCS.
Mr. Chung is a vice president of SWCS and has over 20
years of experience in corporate secretarial, mergers
and acquisitions, financial reporting, and auditing. Mr.
Chung is currently a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of CPA
Australia. With these qualifications, Mr. Chung will be
able to fulfill the duties of the Company Secretary.
For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 14 December 2023.

In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Chung has received no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year.

Mr. Zhu Kexian, the financial manager of the Company,
is the main contact person for the company secretary
of the Company and will collaborate and communicate
with Mr. Chung on corporate governance, secretarial
and administrative matters of the Company.

TEERKRS

NEME

EABEEBIINBEXREDWERFHER
HETXRBER (FB) ARAR (AT
X)) REEERERIMERS > UHBE
EEBHN NN EEIRE owE T ER
BEFR - 2REFHINEEEARES
EERMREERSLANENER KRS -

RIZEZ=F+"A+0BEE HEEZER
HBER (FB) ARAR ((FEEXE) RE
wERRE S L (MBS ) BEEREAATHNR
AME (RARWE)) BEESHEREZ
SRR REENE - HB UHRERE
SAAEBERB20F KR -BRERAETEG
S AGERGERRMEMESAALE T
8 W LB %E?EEEH%QE%])%EQ}?
MENBE ARFHB F2RAQTZ
—=%+ZH —I—EEI"%O

*ETJ‘EJ:FE%E AISE3.20MFHIRE > BREERN
REERZA O8N ENEREEE -

Z/NSIIUE T ESE T SR = =R AN A SIE )
ENEEMEN BRUARTEEER WE
RITHEREE SR EHIFREE-

I
]
i
D
o

AT | cE-mEFERE

83



84

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERKRS

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises the Shareholders’ rights
in exercising control proportionate to their equity
ownership. As one of the measures to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at the Shareholder’s meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of Director(s),
for the Shareholder’s consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’ meeting
will be voted by way of poll, which is conducted
and scrutinised by the Company’s share registrar.
An explanation in relation to the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided before voting, and
questions from Shareholders on voting by poll, if any,
are answered. Poll results are announced and posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website after the relevant meetings.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by email
to info@puxing-enegy.com for the attention of the
Company. The Company will not normally deal with
verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar of
the Company provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such written notice(s) are given,
shall be at least seven days and that (if the written
notices are submitted after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such written notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of
the notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end on no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office
of the Company at No.181-1 Hejiatang, Chongxian
Subdistrict, Linping District, Hangzhou 311108,
Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the share registrar of
the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices
required will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

According to the shareholders’ communication
policy of the Company, the Company currently has
different platforms and channels (including general
meetings, website, email, and telephone of the
Company) allowing the shareholders of the Company
to access the latest information, make inquiries,
or express their opinions from time to time. During
the year, after being reviewed by the Board, it was
unanimously approved and confirmed that the current
shareholders’ communication policy has established
different platforms and channels for shareholders to
express their opinions and obtain the latest information
of the Company. It is unanimously believed that
the shareholders’ communication policy has been
effectively implemented and can continue to be used.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. During the year, there was no change in the
constitutional documents of the Company.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

e RINEE S

RIBERARABDWRRBMER  ARFRER

ERRTaNERE (BERRAE AR HE
EBENBEFS)  BEARAEARRAFKE
BARTENMREENEARTNRMEE

FHERHREEER - F R ZBMBERE
EFERRB L—BRZRAEREREA
WRRBABRERE AR FENMREZER
REREHERAESEATANEMER  —

NRARRRBANRESIBENEK > oI
n\ﬁ@ﬁﬁ °
BEXH

FRBEEBER KA RABSEMANRN
AR B AR S (BE3CRR K 3 hR) BI B 252 B 48 ik

RGP LER -NAFE > ARRNEE
XL A2 -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board believes that effective understanding,
acceptance and management of risk is fundamental
to the long-term success of the Group. Effective
communication and consultation are essential
throughout the risk management process to enhance
the understanding of risk identification, analysis and
evaluation and to accept them in an informed way. The
Board takes the following approach to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks:

()  To understand the nature and extent of risks
facing the Group;

(i)  To accept and manage within the business those
risks which its staff have the skills and expertise to
understand and leverage;

(i)  To assess and transfer or avoid those risks which
are beyond the Group’s appetite for risk; and

(iv) By consideration of materiality, to establish
the authority levels within the Group at which
decisions on acceptance and mitigation of these
risks are taken.
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Risk Management Framework

The diagram below summarises the Board’s
complementary approach based on utilising a top-
down plus a bottom-up process:

B EEER
TE#E%i;%%ﬁ%E"\ﬂﬁﬁ BEMFURBRT
ERENE®MAE

The Board
3
o Fully responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
2RAESAEAMP AR EERANIEIERR
. Set strategic goals
FIE RSB R

“Top-down”

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
IRET AN M R bR B IR R N EP B R R AR AN

Monitor the nature and extent of the key risks of the Group

EEAERTIERBIOMEREE

Provide guidance for the importance of risk management and risk management culture

REAREEEENRARE

= W

EXERMEES|

Supervise, identify, evaluate
and mitigate risks at
enterprise level
BRI AT R AT AR
EEEEENERE

Management

\/ BEE

monitor risk management
and internal control systems
REh Bk ERERER
Fe PUBRIZERIZ AR

e Assess the company-wide
risks and mitigation
measures

Identify, evaluate and = N 42
mitigate risks in business :Fﬁ% ARIBVEIR R AR

units and functional areas

B BT AT AR TS B R, ~

e Design, implement and .

Audit Committee

BRZEY

Assist the Board to monitor
the risk level, related risk
management and the design
and operation effectiveness
of the internal control systems
HEhEE TR AT 8
RAREPR B IR K N ERIESI R AR
HEE St RSB MR

Financial
Management
Department

MRS EIRED

Assist the Audit Committee
to review the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk
management and internal
control systems
HEhEZEE RIS AER
RREE RN EEIERAN
D%y

oo SNl

“Bottom-up”

Fe Pt

Operational Level

EEEE

. Identify, evaluate and mitigate business risks

HBI G R AT AR ETS AR

o Implement risk management procedures and internal control measures in various operational and

functional areas

EREE R EANT R EIEE R KA B EHHEE
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The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. To continuously monitor the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, the
Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group at least
annually with the support from the Audit Committee.

Appropriate risk treatments are embedded in
daily operations. Once risk is identified, it will be
continuously monitored depending on its subsequent
risk rating and strength of controls to treat the risk.
All staff have the responsibility for the continuous
monitoring of risks and operation of controls within
their area of responsibility. In particular, close attention
has been paid to those risk areas indicating a strong
reliance on internal controls and processes to bring the
risks to an acceptable level.

TEERKRS
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TEERKRS

As an ongoing process, the financial management
department of the Group randomly tests the internal
control and risk management systems annually,
and reports their works and findings to the Audit
Committee. In addition, despite the external auditors
of the Company do not express any opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control, they have
obtained an understanding of internal control relevant
to their audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. The external
auditors also communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that they identify during their audit. Once any significant
deficiencies in internal control is identified and reported,
the Company will take timely remedial actions whenever
necessary.

The Group handled and disseminated inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules and
the SFO. The Board identifies and determines whether
certain information needs to be disclosed as inside
information under the Listing Rules and the SFO with
the recommendation from the Senior Management and
the legal adviser of the Company. If an information is
determined as inside information, such information
will be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
by way of announcements unless the information falls
within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO.
Before the inside information is fully disclosed, such
information will keep strictly confidential and will only
be disclosed to, and handled by, those employees who
have a genuine need to know.
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The Group has established an internal audit department
and its internal audit function is maintained by the
internal audit department of the Group with the
supervision of the Audit Committee. During the year,
the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee, has
conducted a review on the effectiveness of all material
controls of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024. Based on the review from the Audit Committee,
the Board is satisfied that, based on the information
provided and on its own observation, the present risk
management and internal control systems are effective
and adequate for the nature and size of the Group’s
operations and business. There were no significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified
during the review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of its initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20-30% of the net profit attributable to
the Shareholders as dividend. However, the payment
and amount of any dividends in the future will be at
the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
is no assurance that the amount of dividend payment
or the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.

TEERKRS
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KPME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Puxing Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 102 to 211,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes, comprising material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2024 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

it BEBEFREEENED

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

BB R GBI E M5 2(b)

The Key Audit Matter
EE R E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HANSANAEEZER

At 31 December 2024, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB229,592,000.
R_E_ME+-_A=+—8>
RN K 16229,592,0007T ©

EEERHERE

The directors evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based on forecasts of
the Group’s profit and cash inflows from operations
and the ability of the Group to obtain or renew
bank loans and other financing facilities to finance
its continuing operations. As a result of their
assessment, the directors believe that the Group will
generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months and concluded that there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which,
individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

EEREY SEEHANRESHERANTERX
R BEEIRGNERERTENREMAEEEEN
AREFESEREESNENLGHE SE£ENE
BRERN KL B EFTAR EEERKE
FERANREREBUBMER KR+ ZE L FEHN
BB TAEIAHMEETEENSNNERAS B
ESFESERNBHRERREBNSEHIR BN
BATEERR-
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Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern included the
following:
RANBSEFEENLGREFERRERTETE
MHNFENBERAIEYN SEENFEKSENE
FEARRR BEUTEE!

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

e HEBHIARMBATFTARKRILEERE
H BEEEFEKERNTENRNEEZNR
FHMITREEMR

° comparing the available financing facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation
and assessing the impact of any covenants
and other restrictive terms attached thereto;

s RERMEEERZHEMBRXHETTLEERLK
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The Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

I Z AR S

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANMAEEZER

We identified the assessment of the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern as a key audit
matter because the Group was in a net current
liabilities position as at 31 December 2024 which
has increased the risk that the Group may not be
able to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting capacity tariff,
electricity volume tariff, annual power generation
volumes and natural gas prices and in assessing the
ability of the Group to renew or obtain new financing
facilities upon expiry of the existing financing
facilities.

B BEEER_ZNF+A=+—HERF
MEBEERR WIEBMT SBSEENKRERFEL
SEREBLCSNEAR  KAKXTE BEBFE
RENENBANEEENE TREKLAE > LH
EERASEEB - EEBE - 2FLEERKXA
RE® UkTH SEERREMEEGEEIIHRE
BHAESHMBEEENENEFE RMHERT
&t EEEFBEENENTEA—HERESS
I5 o

° assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing financing facilities upon
maturity by performing a retrospective review
of past renewal or roll-over history of financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;

s FREBHMEBNBATEECMEEEENRNE
RMEMNGZR Ul EEENREEMEEE
B AR ET B BB 2 /) RIER E
REEEARENZRITERKAMMEEE
Z BRI S BRI S

° inspecting the financial services agreement
with Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd. and
assessing the intention of Wanxiang Finance
Co., Ltd. to continue to provide such financial
services, the legality and enforceability of
the terms of the agreement and the ability of
Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd. to provide such
financial services;
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The Key Audit Matter
Bt EE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANMMAEEZER
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° evaluating the key assumptions adopted
by management in the preparation of the
cash flow forecast, including capacity
tariff, electricity volume tariff, annual power
generation volumes and natural gas prices by
comparing these key assumptions with the
historical performance of the power plants,
financial budgets and terms of future electricity

supply as agreed with local governments;

o HAEEEERNESZREEARARANE

E2RX (OESEEE BEBE - 2F%E

REARRER) URHZEETEBRREZEMR
NWESXRIFE - FHRERMEEMBFRENR

R BIRTETEER ;

° comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether
any variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding
of the Group’s business and considering the
accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing

them with the current year’s results; and

s RARXRBHREESMNEBHEEFELBUREITLE 5
LESAEEAEFNNERMENY S&5H
EBZ2THRIER UG EERFFHBG
FREREVALESEFNRBETIEBUETE

HEBERAEN &

° assessing the sensitivities of the key
assumptions adopted by management in the
going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any

bias in the selection of such assumptions.
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with IFRS Accounting
Standards and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business
units within the Group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
review of the audit work performed for purposes
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Tse Wong Pui.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A4S L %

e IEm

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_LE _UFEf _H=F—HIFFEE

2024

—TMME
Note RMB’000
A AR%®Tx

4 534,054

(231,361)
(105,595)

(15,677)

5(b) (27,603)
(24,922)

(5,932)

(3,296)

119,668

1,270
(33,022)

5(a) (31,752)

6 2,042

89,958

7 (30,039)

Revenue 1§
Operating expenses REMX
Fuel consumption IARLE FE
Depreciation and amortisation TEE R
Repairs and maintenance HERRE
Personnel costs BI&
Administrative expenses THRAX
Sales related taxes HEMRBRIE
Other operating expenses Ht& S
Profit from operations BEER
Finance income MHUWA
Finance expenses MHEREX
Net finance costs M A2 ER
Other income HAa A
Profit before taxation BRI AT F
Income tax FTigia

Profit for the year FREH

59,919
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2023

=
=T

RMB’000
AEBTTT

513,510

(211,665
(90,565
15,202
27,329
18,181
(4,205
(5,591

— e
—_ T — === =

140,772

623
(37,501)

(36,878)

3,743

107,637

(36,797)

70,840



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

\\7|_ - j:ﬁ %E

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE _E _UEf _H=+—HILEE

2024 2023
—E S e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz PN A ARBTT
Attributable to: UTEHEM:
Equity shareholders of the Company ATIERIRER 70,842
Non-controlling interests JEER = 2)
Profit for the year FREH 70,840
Earnings per share SRET
Basic (RMB) HEAX (AR TT) 10(a) 0.154
Diluted (RMB) 8 (ART) 10(b) 0.154
The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these FI0E2ENNEERZELR AR BRR
consolidated financial statements. B—E 5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
relfmMEMEEmERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_LE _UFEf _H=F—HIFFEE

Note
B 5

Profit for the year FREH

Other comprehensive income for FREMZEEA (RR

the year (after tax and REMDHERAER) .
reclassification adjustments):
ltems that will not be reclassified to THEMDERE
profit or loss: BENIER !
Exchange differences on translation MBARREHHRR
of financial statements of the HE R E%E
Company
ltems that may be reclassified HEBEJEHMDER
subsequently to profit or loss: BENIER !
Exchange differences on translation MEBINNBRE
of financial statements of overseas R CE L)
subsidiaries bE 7 = RE
Total comprehensive income FREZEBALE

for the year

Attributable to: UTEFEM:
Equity shareholders of the Company KNABHERRE
Non-controlling interests FEER R

Total comprehensive income FRAZEIALLE

for the year

The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these F110E211 BT sE A8 Ak £

consolidated financial statements. B —&B5 o
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2024
—ENE

RMB’000
AR®¥Tw

59,919

(2,910)

E\I(LL

A

&=
=

2023

=

=T

RMB’000
AEBTTT

2,215

71,243

71,245
(2)

71,243

FEMBERE



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR B AK R

At 31 December 2024
RIEZWFE+—HA=+—H

2024 2023
“ECME

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

DEH AE¥ TR NSk

Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERKE 11 1,643,479 1,448,964
Intangible assets mEEE 12 768 1,426
Deferred tax assets FERIBE E 23(b) 5,747 6,119
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 13 31,384 21,848
1,681,378 1,478,357
Current assets MHEE
Inventories FE 14 58,377 58,465
Trade and other receivables FEUN B 5 K Efth 7 1B 16 60,667 62,088
Cash and cash equivalents RENIBEEEY 17 114,458 130,719
233,502 251,272
Current liabilities b =R
Shareholder’s loan REE™R 18 120,269 112,866
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 179,713 374,575
Trade and other payables BN E S REMARIE 20 142,766 25,644
Lease liabilities HEAaRE 21 - 96
Current taxation BIER#R 18 23(a) 20,346 23,090
463,094 536,271
Net current liabilities mEEEFEE (229,592) (284,999)
Total assets less current liabilities #AEER &S 1,451,786 1,198,358

The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R BT R

At 31 December 2024
RIEZWFE+ZH=+—H

2024 2023
CTEINE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
NI ARE T EBNEL-Sr
Non-current liabilities EREBEaR
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 532,793 340,800
Deferred revenue 1% JIE WY 7 22 10,624 10,694
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBAE 23(b) 32,089 25,751
575,506 377,245
NET ASSETS BESE 876,280 816,113
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B K E#E
Share capital [N 24(b) 40,149 40,149
Reserves i 836,131 775,981
Total equity attributable to equity FATEDRER
shareholders of the Company FE L 4B 876,280 816,130
Non-controlling interests JEIER IR (17)
TOTAL EQUITY Mg 876,280 816,113

REFER " ZT"HF=-A°"+N\B#HER

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 28 March 2025. R
GUAN Dayuan YUAN Feng
EXE R
Director Director
EZx EZX
The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these FI0E21ENNEERZELR AR BRRE
consolidated financial statements. B —&B5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

|_ a2
P

n\7|'\

Attrioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

L

JIIl

B R

for the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_E_WWF+ _HA=+—HIFE

ARARGRERE
Statutory Non-
Share Capital Merger surplus Translation Special Retained controlling Total
capital Teserve Teserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
Bk EkfiE alEE EERBEE EREE BHEE RBEF it FERER aEn
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i NEBTR  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTn  ARBTR  ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2023 AZEZZE-B-RAH
&8 40,149 24,189 240,362 124,373 (42,109) o 357,921 744,885 (15) 744870
Changes in equity for 2023 CECCEREER
Proft for the year idabtil - - - - - - 70,842 70,842 @ 70,840
Other comprehensive income HEf2ERA - - - - 403 - - 403 - 403
Total comprehensive income 2ENALE - - - - 403 - 70,842 1,245 2 71,243
Appropriation to reserves BERE 2(0)) - - - 8,822 - - 8822 - - -
Accrual of safety production fund BHZ24EER - - - - - 11,354 (11,354) S S =
Utilisation of safety production fund HRRREEER - - - - - (8,886) 8,886 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZZE+28
=t+-RfEE 40,149 24,189 240,362 133,195 (41,706) 2,468 47473 816,130 (17 816,113

Share

capital

iz

Note RMB'000
izt ABBTR

Balance at 1 January 2024

R-E-mE-R-AK
Gt

Changes in equity for 2024 “ECMEREEY

Profit for the year fidabpil

Other comprehensive income Ht2EWA
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE
Approprition to reserves BERE 2c))
Accrual of safety production fund EHR2EEER 24(e)
Utilisation of safety production fund BRZRLEER 24(e)
Balance at 31 December 2024 t=E-ME+ZR

=t+-AmGEH

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

Capital Merger
reserve reserve
ERfif Eit-1 ]
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR

24,189 240,362

24,189 240,362

The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

BARRERREN

Statutory
surplus  Translation Special
reserve reserve reserve
EERRHE  ERRE  HUEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ABBTR ABBTR

133,195 (41,706) 2,468

1,121
(8,296)

14,567 (41,458) 1,809

F110E211 B WM B AL F 4%

—& 5 e

Retained
profits
REER
RMB'000
AEBTR

H7473

59,902

(837
1721)
8,206

469,512

Subtotal
it
RMB'000
AEBFR

816,130

59,002

248

60,150

876,280

Non-
controlling
interests
JHERER
RMB'000
AEBFT

(17)

=

ZEREEARAE | B HEFERE

Total
equity
s

RMB'000
AEBFR

GMBERE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A ==
:Zvﬂ'\ | Eﬁ,ﬁ /)ILE%%
for the year ended 31 December 2024
BE_LE _UFEf _H=F—HIFFEE

2024 2023
—EUE e
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
iz N E ARBTT
Cash flows from operating activities & EBFFISIRERE
Profit for the year FEEF 59,919 70,840
Adjustments for: KFEIFE .
Depreciation of owned property, BEEME -BEK
plant and equipment RBITE 5(c) 103,062 87,955
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE
— land use rights — T EE R 5(c) 1,698 1,698
— other properties —Hth¥z= 5(c) 92 203
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#HE 5(c) 743 709
Net finance costs BTSSR 5B 5(a) 31,752 36,878
Net loss on disposal of property, BEEYME -BEX
plant and equipment RBEETE 5(c) 685 442
Tax expense MBS 7(a) 30,039 36,797
227,990 235,522
Changes in working capital: EEETEE .
Decrease in inventories FERD 88 135
Decrease in trade and other FEWE 5 K& HAhzIE
receivables PN 1,421 12,230
Increase in other non-current assets HhIEmen B E1E M (9,536) (9,212)
Increase in trade and other payables FE(TE 5 M EtzIE
and deferred revenue LAz 305 SIE U 28 12 0 6,321 547
Cash generated from RS EEIFRSIRE
operating activities 226,284 239,222
Interest paid BIFE (26,192) (41,839)
Income taxes paid BEIPER 23(a) (26,073) (24,811)
Net cash generated from RS ERENFRSIRE R
operating activities 174,019 172,572
The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these FI0E21ENNEERZELR AR BRRE

consolidated financial statements. B —&B5 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BIRERER

for the year ended 31 December 2024
BE _E _UEf _H=+—HILEE

Note
B 5

n‘7|'\

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Payment for purchase of property,
plant and equipment

REZHFRERERE

B E

BEYME BB

RER

Payment for purchase of intangible assetsi# & # 2 & E (I ™=

Net cash used in investing activities & EZBIFFAREFEE

Cash flows from financing activities Ft ¥ ;& B i #

Capital element of lease rentals paid
Proceeds from interest-bearing

borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing

borrowings

Payment of consideration payable

SHERE

ENEEEENERKD

stEEEMTS

BEFERE

N RENR

SIS

Net cash used in financing activities FiE EBIFIAREFELE

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and IREKRINESZXEY GEL)

cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

/B INFER

R—BA—BNRER

REEEM

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

R+ZB=+—BmHRE
RREEEM

17(a)

The notes on pages 110 to 211 form part of these
consolidated financial statements.

F110E211 BRI sE AL
2B o

r—

2024
—TME

RMB’000
AR®Fr

1,270

(188,477)
(85)

(187,292)

(98)
580,000

(582,890)

(2,988)

(16,261)

130,719

114,458

%

=&~
=2

i

2023

=

—_—

RMB’000
AEBTT

(175)
418,009

(448,319)
(95,851)

(126,336)

41,288

89,431

130,719

REMBERE

AT | cE-mEFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

1

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 July 2009. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRS
Accounting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IFRS Accounting Standards”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). Material accounting policies adopted
by the Group are disclosed below.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain amendments
to IFRS Accounting Standards that are first
effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group.
Note 2(e) provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

At 31 December 2024, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB229,592,000 (31
December 2023: RMB284,999,000). In view
of this circumstance, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and
performance of the Group and its available
sources of finance in assessing whether the
Group will have sufficient financial resources
to continue as a going concern.

(B BB UN R THT)

2 BEXRGFEER®

(a)

(b)

37
=

2

PN
A

AREHR (&
EREst R IEEEER/MHET
RAEEBEMSSHHBEREN
A RFHRMIBER BREE
Al st ERMEST A - I E2(e) BB
MRERILERESIBNEDTS
STERE B ZHRER - MfEE N H
ERFREMRBNEERE
RISt IE AR ZAB AR

MBERZGHNEE

BE_ZEZ_WFE+-"HA=+—H
ETEENGEUHFRREBELA
AIRERE AT

R BHRRETEE LR A A

o

N _E_NE+_B=+—H">
AEENRBEEFEAARE
229,592,0000c (ZE =%+
B=+—H: AR%284,999,000
7o) cEBRIEE R ARBESE (£
Z) R EEAERRTEREVH
BERFELER BEBBEEZEAE
BN RETRHEETRREUKRE
AEMERR

EEAMRAT | ZB-mEFEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A

TV

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

(c)

statements (Continued)

Based on the forecast of the Group’s profit
and cash inflows from operations, the
unused revolving loan credit facilities of
RMB283.2 million as at 31 December 2024
granted by Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Finance”), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, and the ability of the Group
to obtain or renew bank loans and other
financing facilities from related parties,
including Wanxiang Finance, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its liabilities as and
when they fall due in the next 12 months.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that
there are no material uncertainties related
to events or conditions which, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located
in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousand, except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HKS$").
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

i 1 7

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEARGHHEE @
(Continued)
(d) Use of judgements and estimates (d) 136 FA i R (i 5t
The preparation of financial statements in R E PR 7S R S 2 AR B 75
conformity with IFRS Accounting Standards RRF BEEEREFLAIERE

requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, which is considered to have the
most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. Further information is set out in
note 2(b).

REBREE-BBE - WAETH
2RO RNET FHEE RBRK %
EEREERKDERBELR
BANTEERBILTRARENS

BEMAEEY  HEEEREES
HlETE REBHMIRREREOE
NEELABBRERENKE B
ERAIBEEZE T RE -

TRBERFERS RS RA
%ﬁﬁXD ﬂJ]ElD-I'TED-I'E,J'T u]—'f %:ga
BT > Rl F A st T 2 B i
50 0 i A RE ST &2 B IR B KR 2R A
fE > Bl 72 18 57 HA 8 e oK 2Kk B i b

=]
s ©

RERFEREN S ERE > B
BEFEBERAEREFEEEE
HBHE > HRRAHEREGME
BREINEBRARDREAZE
BT BHENMEE2(0) -

AT | cE-mEFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(j)
(i), an impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. It is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next
financial period that are different from
assumptions could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates

(e)

(Continued)
(iij) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRS Accounting Standards
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

° Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation
of financial statements — Classification
of liabilities as current or non-current
(2020 amendments”) and amendments
to IAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements — Non-current liabilities with
covenants (“2022 amendments”)

o Amendments to IFRS 16, Leases -
Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

(B BB UN R THT)

BREFHER #)

(d) fERHFIERR & (&)

(iii) EAEHIHE E AT i# T
FLAREAMNEREERETNRE
BREZENELERNEBEEET
REEEREENRREERE
WAEH T VRSB st 8 0 LUK
SHAEERNEREHA
MESE -BEELEREEE
PERREER > &b 5t TRHAMER
Mamd > BRI REREER
EERENZERR LHRE

ESFHEZEHE-

() EFEREE
AEBEEREM S HBNILSE
MBERREATIERMBRS
ZR G ER 2B

e HRESHERFIRKZER]
o HBEREZES —BIESHE
BRBHF R ((“EF
FEFTZA)) RERE 2R
BIFKZET R HEHREE
J — by # ZeE I I B & 1R
(QS—- =2 2 NI

s HRUBHRSHEAFI6RZ

1Bs1 & HHE—E# O] FHI
HEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A

TV

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(f)

(Continued)

° Amendments to IAS 7, Statement
of cash flows and IFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures — Supplier
finance arrangements

None of these developments have had a
material effect on how the Group’s results
and financial position for the current or prior
periods have been prepared or presented.
The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by
the Group. The Group controls an entity
when it is exposed to, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity.
The financial statements of subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date on which control
commences until the date on which control
ceases.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expenses (except
for foreign currency transaction gains or
losses) arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised losses resulting
from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains, but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests (“NCI”) either at fair value or at the
NCl’s proportionate share of the subsidiary’s
net identifiable assets. NCI are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. NCI in the results of the
Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and
total comprehensive income for the year
between NCI and the equity shareholders of
the Company. Loans from holders of NCI and
other contractual obligations towards these
holders are presented as financial liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial
position in accordance with notes 2(n) or (0)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary, and any related
NCI and other components of equity. Any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any interest retained in that former
subsidiary is measured at fair value when
control is lost.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(j)(i), unless it is classified as held
for sale (or included in a disposal group
classified as held for sale).

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

The following items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost,
which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment
losses (see note 2(j)(ii)):

- right-of-use assets arising from
leases over freehold or leasehold
properties where the Group is
not the registered owner of the
property interest; and

S items of plant and equipment,
including right-of-use assets
arising from leases of underlying
plant and equipment (see note

2(i)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and measurement
(Continued)

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components).

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of items of property, plant and
equipment less their estimated residual
values using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss.

n‘7|_\

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 EXT

Rk eSS

(B BB UN R THT)

TR (4

(9) ME- -BERRHE (&

I

(i)

(i)

Wb‘& nfE C: I)

myE-BEKRRBEE TR
EXBOBETANAERE
B AIARRIEBIIER (£
EHEED)

HEVE BEKRXREERE
ENEMWR G EETER
NFEED o

#EHZ

E 725 BB S B9 R AR AL 7]
TERERATEERTEE
FEB B -

(iii) #HrE

T

fBi

MEXRBERERAEMGSH
ERERMBEYE BB kR
18 B B9 pl A 36 0 B H 4 5t
ReFBESNE  BENIEDME

=7
o ©

BRAE | S mEEERS

119



120

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

(iii) Depreciation (Continued)
The estimated useful lives of significant

items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator and heat 15-30 years
supply equipment

Energy storage 10-15 years
equipment

Other machineries 5-32 years

Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years

fixtures, equipment
and others

Right-of-use assets Depreciated

including land use over the
rights shorter of the
unexpired

lease term or
the estimated
useful lives of

the assets

Depreciation methods, useful lives and

residual values are reviewed annually
and adjusted if appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
i 1 7

B 5 ¥ 2= MY 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful
life is finite) and impairment losses (see
note 2(j)(ii).

Amortisation is calculated to write off the
cost of intangible assets less their estimated
residual values using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives, if any, and is
generally recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Pollutant emission rights
Software

4-5 years
5-10 years

Amortisation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed annually and
adjusted if appropriate.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. This is the case if the
contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control
is conveyed where the customer has both
the right to direct the use of the identified
asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease
component(s), the Group has elected
not to separate non-lease components
and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date,
the Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a lease liability, except for
leases that have a short lease term of
12 months or less, and leases of low-
value items such as laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into
a lease in respect of a low-value item,
the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. If
not capitalized, the associated lease
payments are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the
lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the
lease liability is initially recognised
at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease
term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is recognised using
the effective interest method. Variable
lease payments that do not depend
on an index or rate are not included in
the measurement of the lease liability,
and are charged to profit or loss as
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised
when a lease is capitalised is initially
measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred
and an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received. The right-of-use
asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (see notes 2(g) and

2()(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M HwRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease
payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee, or if the Group
changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension
or termination option. When the lease
liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured
when there is a lease modification,
which means a change in the scope of
a lease or the consideration for a lease
that is not originally provided for in the
lease contract, if such modification
is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case, the lease liability
is remeasured based on the revised
lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of
financial position, the current portion of
long-term lease liabilities is determined
as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled
within twelve months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEKARKETHEK #E
(Continued)
() Leased assets (Continued) (i) HEEE @

(i) 1ESBLHBEA

(ii) As a lessor

The Group determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a
finance lease or an operating lease. A
lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to the ownership
of an underlying assets to the lessee.
Otherwise, the lease is classified as an
operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the
contract to each component on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.
The rental income from operating leases
is recognised in accordance with note

1(s)(ii)(c).

When the Group is an intermediate
lessor, the sub-leases are classified as
a finance lease or as an operating lease
with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head
lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described
in note 1(i)(i), then the Group classifies
the sub-lease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
(Br 5 F15855) » UN B B 5T)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets
(i) Credit losses from financial

instruments

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (“ECL”"s) on:

- financial assets measured at
amortised cost (including cash
and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables);

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. Generally,
credit losses are measured as the
present value of all expected cash
shortfalls between the contractual and
expected amounts.

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following rates if
the effect is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and
trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 75 ¥ 2R MY 5E

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)
Measurement of ECLs (Continued)
The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum

contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases:

12-month ECLs: these are the
portion of ECLs that result from
default events that are possible
within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter
period if the expected life of
the instrument is less than 12
months); and

lifetime ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of
the items to which the ECL model
applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i) Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueqd)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
except for the following, which are
measured at 12-months ECLs:

- financial instruments that are
determined to have low credit risk
at the reporting date; and

- other financial instruments
(including loan commitments
issued) for which credit risk (i.e.
the risk of default occurring
over the expected life of the
financial instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial
recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables
and contract assets are always
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueqd)

Significant increases in credit risk

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition and when measuring ECLs,
the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment, that includes forward-
looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial asset has increased
significantly if it is more than 60 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be in default when:

- the debtor is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group
in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is 60 days past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M HwRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueqd)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

ECLs are remeasured at each
reporting date to reflect changes in
the financial instrument’s credit risk
since initial recognition. Any change
in the ECL amount is recognised as
an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial
instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account,
except for investments in non-equity
securities that are measured at FVOCI
(recycling), for which the loss allowance
is recognised in OCI and accumulated
in the fair value reserve (recycling) does
not reduce the carrying amount of
the financial asset in the statement of
financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

i [

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueqd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes the following
observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of
the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or being more than 90
days past due;

—  the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is probable that the debtor will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties of the issuer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PN
i [

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueqd)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off to the extent
that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case
when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources
of income that could generate sufficient
cash flows to repay the amounts
subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current
assets

At each reporting date, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of
its non-financial assets (other than
property carried at revalued amounts,
investment property, inventories and
other contract costs, contract assets
and deferred tax assets) to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBEAGFHEEK #E
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses and impairment of () EEBERBEERE @)

assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current

assets (Continued)

For impairment testing, assets are
grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows
of other assets or cash-generating
units (“CGU”s). Goodwill arising from
a business combination is allocated
to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal.
Value in use is based on the estimated
future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

2

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)]

Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are recognised in
profit or loss. They are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then
to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata
basis.

An impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed. For other
assets, an impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the resulting
carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with |IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial
year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

U]

Inventories

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group
has an unconditional right to receive
consideration and only the passage of
time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant
financing component and other receivables
are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs. All receivables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost (see
note 2(j)(i).

Insurance reimbursement is recognised and
measured in accordance with note 2(r).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JAA
i [

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

(n)

(o)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECL (see note 2(j)(i)).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

Interest-bearing borrowings and shareholder’s
loan are measured initially at fair value less
transaction costs. Subsequently, interest-
bearing borrowings and shareholder’s loan
are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with note 2(v).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits

(a)

(i) Short term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Short-term employee benefits are
expensed as the related service is
provided. A liability is recognised
for the amount expected to be paid
if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this
amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans are
expensed as the related service is
provided.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax
and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to a
business combination, or items recognised
directly in equity or in OCI.

Current tax comprises the estimated tax
payable or receivable on the taxable income
or loss for the year and any adjustments to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of
previous years. The amount of current tax
payable or receivable is the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income taxes. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Current tax also includes any
tax arising from dividends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is not
recognised for:

temporary differences on the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business
combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss
and does not give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences;

temporary differences related to
investment in subsidiaries, associates
and joint venture to the extent that
the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that
they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future;

taxable temporary differences arising on
the initial recognition of goodwill; and

those related to the income taxes
arising from tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted to implement
the Pillar Two model rules published
by the Organisation for Economic Co-
operation and Development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

Income tax (Continued)

The Group recognised deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities separately in
relation to its lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for
unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which
they can be used. Future taxable profits
are determined based on the reversal of
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the
amount of taxable temporary differences is
insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for
reversals of existing temporary differences,
are considered, based on the business
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions
are reversed when the probability of future
taxable profits improves.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
only if certain criteria are met.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
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R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Generally provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for warranties is recognised when
the underlying products or services are sold,
based on historical warranty data and a
weighting of possible outcomes against their
associated probabilities.

A provision for onerous contracts is
measured at the present value of the lower of
the expected cost of terminating the contract
and the expected net cost of continuing
with the contract, which is determined
based on the incremental costs of fulfilling
the obligation under that contract and an
allocation of other costs directly related to
fulfilling that contract. Before a provision
is established, the Group recognises any
impairment loss on the assets associated
with that contract (see note 2(j)(ii)).

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i) Revenue from contracts with
customers

The Group is the principal for its
revenue transactions and recognises
revenue on a gross basis. In
determining whether the Group acts as
a principal or as an agent, it considers
whether it obtains control of the
products before they are transferred
to the customers. Control refers to the
Group’s ability to direct the use of and
obtain substantially all of the remaining
benefits from the products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i)

Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue is recognised when control
over a product or service is transferred
to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on
behalf of third parties such as value
added tax or other sales taxes.

(a)

(b)

Revenue from sales of
electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission
of electric power to the power grid
companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power
transmitted and the applicable
fixed tariff rates agreed with the
respective electric power grid
companies periodically.

Capacity tariff revenue

Capacity tariff revenue is
recognised on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the installed
production capacity of individual
power plants and the relevant
capacity tariff rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(c)

Revenue from sales of heat

Revenue from sales of heat is
recognised upon the transmission
of heat to the third party
customers, as determined based
on the volume of heat transmitted
and the applicable unit price
agreed with the respective
customers periodically.

(ii) Revenue from other sources and
other income

(a)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised
using the effective interest
method. The “effective interest
rate” is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset to the gross
carrying amount of the financial
asset. In calculating interest
income, the effective interest rate
is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset (when the
asset is not credit-impaired).
However, for financial assets that
have become credit-impaired
subsequent to initial recognition,
interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest
rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no
longer credit-impaired, then the
calculation of interest income
reverts to the gross basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(i) Revenue from other sources and
other income (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial
position initially when there
is reasonable assurance that
they will be received and that
the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them.

Grants that compensate the
Group for expenses incurred are
recognised as income in profit
or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset
are deducted from the carrying
amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over
the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

Rental income from operating
leases

Rental income is recognised
as revenue in which they are
earned based on variable rents
basis upon the transmission of
electric power to the power grid
companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the respective functional
currencies of group companies at the
exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated at the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction.
Foreign currency differences are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign currency differences are recognised
in OCI and accumulated in the exchange
reserve, except to the extent that the
translation difference is allocated to NCI.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JAA
i [

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(i)

(i

(i)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i)

(it

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.

(viy The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(vii) The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a
person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R GRS RS
R e IR R M5
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

2 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(x) Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

3 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

3

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

(a)

(b)

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings,
shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings, shareholder’s loan and lease
liabilities approximate their fair values based
on the borrowing rates currently available for
bank loans with similar terms and maturity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TV

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

R M HwRR M EE

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of

power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue, revenue from sales of

heat and revenue from energy storage.

Volume tariff revenue represents
the sale of electricity to power grid
companies.

Capacity tariff revenue represents
a subsidy income from power grid
companies, following a reduction in
the annual planned power generation
volume of the Group’s power plants for
supply to the power grid companies
and changes in the electricity tariff
policies applicable to the Group
since 2015, pursuant to the “Notice
Regarding the Trial Implementation
of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province”
issued by Zhejiang Provincial Price
Bureau in June 2015 and the
“Notice from the Zhejiang Provincial
Development and Reform Commission
Regarding the Optimising the Province’s
On-grid Tariff of Natural Gas Power
Generation” issued in September 2021.

Revenue from sales of heat represents
the sale of heat to corporate entities.

Revenue from energy storage
represents the lease income with
variable rents, which is based on sale
of electricity generated by energy
storage power stations to power grid
companies on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- %‘Z $E %E M_.l- I:II

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmkDHWHRS @)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (#&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue () WmmiE
Disaggregation of revenue from BRFIFEE@OBNEREYN
contracts with customers by major W=

products is as follows:

2024 2023
—EMFE s

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETr BNEE R

Revenue from contracts [ PR BA 35 3R &5 £ A1)
with customers within F15RHEE A
the scope of IFRS 15* ERE&H WS

Disaggregated by major products: % F EE R 48 :

Electricity: B
Volume tariff revenue BEEEEWA 181,512 168,287
Capacity tariff revenue REBEWA 300,595 300,595
482,107 468,882
Heat: =N
Revenue from sales of heat HER WA 39,260 44,628

Revenue from other resource  E {7 E R UL 5

Rental income: AEWA -
Revenue from energy storage FEBEWA 12,687 =
534,054 513,510
Revenue from contracts with customers are * REBFELGHOWBRNBARIRSE
recognised at point in time for the reporting AR B REFE ST o
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base is
concentrated and includes one
customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. In 2024, volume tariff
revenue, capacity tariff revenue and
energy storage revenue from this
customer (including its subsidiaries)
amounted to RMB494,794,000
(2023: RMB468,882,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising
from this customer are set out in note
25(a).

For sales of products with original
expected duration of less than one year,
the Group has selected not to disclose
information about the mandatory
performance performers’ obligation.

(b) Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified five operating segments, which are
the five power plants, namely:

Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Anji Power Plant”);

Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Deneng Power
Plant”);

Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.*(“Jing-Xing Power
Plant”);
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4
(Continued)

Wm Kk aRERE &)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) REPIHS &

o Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Bluesky Power
Plant”); and

° Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Quzhou Power
Plant”)

* For identification purpose only

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these five operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type or class of customers and the
regulatory environment. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from the
volume tariff revenue, capacity tariff revenue,
revenue from sales of heat and revenue from
energy storage in the PRC, and the principal
non-current assets employed by the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical segments has been
provided for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 [RIRADEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after (crediting)/ BRIRATEF TS GEA) /MBI TEER
charging: R
(a) Net finance costs (a) BATERZSIFER

2024 2023

TEINF i
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRTR NG

Interest income A B A (1,270) (623)

Finance income ARSI A (1,270) (623)

Interest on interest-bearing borrowings, 5t B & & « FE(H B &&=

consideration payable and BRFE

shareholder’s loan 35,742
Interest on lease liabilities HESEMNR 7
Less: interest expense capitalised into & : BRI ERZERYERN

properties under development FMERX =
Total interest expense recognised in R IBm R AIF B Rz 48

profit or loss %8 35,749
Bank charges RITER 36
Net foreign exchange loss SNPERS IR SRR 1,716
Finance expenses HMHEHEZ 37,501
Net finance costs B 75 A 72 BB 36,878
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rk eSS

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise /nd/cated)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Personnel costs

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

5 BFEBREIAERN @)
(b) EIRZ

2024 2023

TEINE [y

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR PNEL:Swr

Wages, salaries and other benefits He s IERHEMER] 24,972 24,764
Contribution to defined TERRE GBI B HRR

contribution plans 2,631 2,565

27,603 27,329

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.

I

A5 B 2 2 o B BUF A 8RR IR
T REBEHBRARERE  £&H
AEFHM - FAEERSTRPE
B 2B R AT R MR
MERAXERASHEBOMLR
REE R LEMMERI FERL
ESEERRKREMBKRERET
DEE2 N

i
ot

AT | cE-mEFERE

155



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBEEER @)
(c) Other items (c) HfthiEH

2024 2023
—ETE ey
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEET PNEE S

Net loss on disposal of property, plant HEYXE KR &

and equipment RERIETE 442
Depreciation charge (note 11) HEM (EE11)
— Owned property, plant and —-BEYE -BEM
equipment et 103,062 87,955
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
- land use rights — i R A 1,698 1,698
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
— other properties —Hh4 92 203
Amortisation #iH
- Intangible assets (note 12) —\mrEE (12) 709
Expense relating to short-term leases ffEHIFHE AR 201
Auditor’s remuneration TZ BEM BN =
- audit services —IZER 1,580
— other services —HMARTE 1560
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI R M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HMKkA

2024 2023
“TIMNF ey

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PGS

Government grants BT % B 2,042 3,743
Government grants represented unconditional BN@mmE8aE _S _NOWE+ -8
government grants of RMB1,740,000 (2023: =+—BLEFEEFTHAEERNEKYT
RMB3,343,000) awarded to the Group and the BT # Bk AR 11,740,000t (Z2 ==
amortisation of deferred government grants of £ ANR%83,343,0007T) K 84 1% L B
RMB302,000 during the year ended 31 December ¥ #8 B A R #6302,00070 (Z &2 - =
2024 (2023: RMB400,000). AR #400,0007T) ©

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HREBEERANMER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) {REETERABFREMRIE .

statement of profit or loss represents:

2024 2023

TEINE
GUUEROE  RMB’000

ARBTT NS

Current tax ENHAFR 1B
PRC Corporate Income Tax R ZEFRER 26,351
Over provision in respect of prior years LU{E & {828 # (252)
26,099

Deferred tax EIERIE
Origination and reversal of B EREMNE S KD

temporary differences 10,698
Total income tax expense in the FEBE@mKRNMER

consolidated statement of B 2 48 %E

profit or loss 36,797
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(a)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

(i)

(ih

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands, the Company
is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group did not
have any assessable profits subject to
Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 31
December 2023.

The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are subject to the unified tax
rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from 1
January 2008.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI R M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 BREEZERANMAER @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b) HEAREAHENWRNIEFAZEHSE
and accounting profit at applicable tax sHEFIEER -
rate:
2024 2023
—EOFE ke
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE R
Profit before taxation FRHR B A 89,958 107,637
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRIRETZFI L ZEIRIE
calculated at the rates applicable ZHEAREEEENEF
to profits in the tax jurisdictions BRMETE
concerned 27,056
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses R AJ0F52 R sz AR 75 52 £ 1,673
Tax effect of unused tax losses not KD E’Jﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ
recognised HNRFBEE 2,661
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised T )8 i@EEEREDH
deductible temporary differences A% iﬁﬂ%%%ﬁ 89
utilised N (1,066) (1,866)
Recognition of previously unrecognised F& 23 4 Bl 2k FE 52 BY BT K 30
deductible temporary differences BRER (1,194) (117)
Over provision in prior years UFFEBREREG (583) (252)
Withholding tax on profits retained by BB B /A 517 B8 % 7] Y
PRC subsidiaries SEE 7,054 7,642
Actual tax expense BERMIEME 30,039 36,797
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Directors’
fee
ESNg
RMB’000
ARETR
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Xu Anliang (retired on 4 March 2024) HREREE (RZE-ME
=AMEED)
Mr. Wei Junyong BHERE
Mr. Guan Dayuan (appointed on 4 March 2024) BXBAE (RZE-M#E
“EMAEEZA)
Mr. Yuan Feng (appointed on 3 June 2024) RELERZZ-ME
~NEZHEZD
Non-executive Directors FHTER

Mr. Yuan Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024,  RE%E RS _M&E
and has been redesignated as an executive = ATHEZE BER

director on 3 June 2024) ZEIMERAZH
BEANTES)
Ms. Li Yunjuan (appointed on 3 June 2024,  ZFEELLT R_T_ME
resigned on 30 December 2024) NAZHEZRD IR
ZZMFE+ZB=1H
B
Independent non-executive Directors Bik4iTES
Mr. Yao Xianguo (resigned on 3 June 2024)  #h%&EI%E (R-E-ME
NEZHED
Mr. Tse Chi Man (resigned on 3 June 2024) HENEE BB mE
NAZAED
Mr. Yu Wayne W. aRELE
Mr. Wu Chongguo (appointed on 3 June 2024) % SEEE RZ2ZRE
NE=HE %E)
Ms. Wu Ying (appointed on 3 June 2024) RELT RIEFIME
NA=ZREZT)
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EEME

RIBEEBABRGIBEI8IMNIER AT (K
BEENDEN RAFHKRENES
M=

Year ended 31 December 2024
BE-S_ME+ZA=+-HALEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions Total
W& 2R
BN MBI BAHEER - hy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME @
Year ended 31 December 2023
HET-E+A=t-HIEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
HEVElR
BN EMHE MBI RAGEIER a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTr ARETR ARETR
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Xu Anliang (retired on 4 March 2024)  %#ZREE (R-T-ME
=~ AmBERE) - = = = S
Mr. Wei Junyong BAERE o o = - -
Mr. Guan Dayuan (appointed on BAREE (RZTZmE
4 March 2024) ZAMBEZRF) S = = - -
Non-executive Directors FRTES
Mr. Yuan Feng (appointed on 4 March 2024) RELE (R-Z_M&E
“BEREZT) = = = = =
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BIEHITES
Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXRE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yao Xianguo HhEBLE 180 - - - 180
Mr. Yu Wayne W. nRBEE 180 = = = 180
540 - - - 540

No emoluments were paid by the Group during
the year to the Directors in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join. The directors’ emolument
for Mr. Wei Junyong, Guan Dayuan and Yuan
Feng for the year ended 31 December 2024 and
20283 was borne by China Wanxiang Holding Co.,
Ltd. (“China Wanxiang”), which is a company
controlled by Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”), who is
the ultimate controlling party of the Company,
and a subsidiary of Wanxiang Group Corporation
(“Wanxiang Group”) respectively, who have waived
their rights to seek reimbursement from the
Group.

FRoAEEMERNESERBIIESM
BAEENREMEEEZTME -
MEBLE - EAREERRELER
BE _ T _NEKR_E_ZF£+_H
=+ —HEFENME DR BHETEHE
BERBERARE (PEEM[I) (HERE
s (T&a%E) ZHMAE 8L
BERNBNREIERS) RBEQAEE AT
(TEmEE) N—XRMBABRIE E
MEERERAERBFHER o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?ﬁ $E % M_.I- DI

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 mEmAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest AEBRALREHFATH 2L (2T
emoluments, nil (2023: nil) is the director whose TZF IR AES HIWEIRERK
emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The 8 A (TEZ=F ' %) A8
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the five SHEEWT

(2023: five) individuals are as follows:

2024 2023
—E M iy
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRx PNEL:Swr

Wages, salaries and other benefits e TERHEMEF] 977 1,280
Discretionary bonuses FBETEAT 514 536
Contributions to defined contribution plan & ZBfE st 2R 256 195

1,747 2,011
The emoluments of the five (2023: five) individuals AR (CEZI=ZF. 1% R ALTH
with the highest emoluments are within the e FLAT4ER -

following bands:

2024 2023
ZEIME et
Number of Number of
Individuals Individuals
A¥ AE
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 A 7T E1,000,0008 7T 9
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FR O AEREMBERASRSHESE
the year to the five highest paid employees in B EANBEAERNREMEESZ T
connection with their retirement from employment il

with the Group, or inducement to join.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB59,902,000(2023: RMB70,842,000) and
the weighted average of 458,600,000 (2023:
458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during both years.

(B BB UN R THT)

10 SKREHR
(a)

(b)

37
=

2

PN
A

SREXEF
EREABMNEBEREAADZ
BREEZREELEZNARKE
59,902,0007¢ (ZEZ=F: AR
#%70,842,0007T) BT E @R
B9 07 T 9 84458,600,00088 (=&
— =4 : 458,600,0000%) st & o

SRIBEERA
HREBEE_ZET_WOE+_H
=t+t—HAR-E_=ZF+_"A8
T+t HIEREFEFERLEET
BERD WEREBEERFEAER
HEARBFIAER -

EEAMRAT | ZB-mEFEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERKE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREIEZHER
Motor
Major vehicles, Right-
generator furniture, of-use
and heat Energy fixtures, assets Assets
Buildings supply storage Other  equipment carried under
and plants  equipment  equipment machineries .arg oéh&rs atcost construction Total
129ER EEBER REANEY

BYREE  BARE  HERRE RS At [ERERE  fRRE it
RMBOOD  RMB'OOO  RMB0O0  AMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBIOD
RETn  ARETR  ARETR ARETR  ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARET:

Cost: m: 5
At 1 January 2023 “ET-E-F-f 378,103 1,903,720 - 337,943 17,170 64,888 1,115 2,702,939
Additions - 17 - 64 257 - 5,295 5,793
Transfer from assets under ﬁﬁé BEREE

construction - 3,758 - 2,215 - - (6,083) -
Disposals BE - 2.231) - 1397) (204 (48) 66) (3,400)
Reclassification R (36,639) 36,639 5 = - - X z
At 31 December 2023 and 1 1= §:ZE+ A

January 2024 _+

5 @E B—-H 341,464 1,942,063 339,885 ; 4 291 2,705,332

Additions - 211 1039 - 298,850 300,196
Transfer from assets under ﬁﬁéﬁr BEE

construction 245 36,854 260,094 1,523 (298,784) -
Disposals BE (175 (1199 - (665) . (2,383)

At 31 December 2024 RZE-MEL_R
=+-A 341,534 1,977,936 260,094 341,782 | ’ 3,003,145

Accumulated depreciation E3HTE RHERHE

and impairment losses:

At 1 January 2023 R-B-=£-B-F (141588 (776,326) - By (1699  (10781) - (1,168,966
Charge forthe year ERER (1651 (603%) - (159 @) (1.901) - BagsH)
Witten back on disposals 5 & %[ S 1437 = %2 193 482 = 2,354
Reclassification ENNE 5,506 (5,506 - - - - - -
At 31 December 2023 and R-EZ=F+-R
1 January 2024 :‘I'— BR

“ZTME-A-H (147,733) (840,721) - (238,907) (16,807) (12,200) (1,256,368)
Charge for the year ERER (11,608) (63,865) (11,073) (16,481) (35) (1,790) (104,852)
Written back on disposals 2 & &[] 101 595 - 634 24 - 1,554
At31December 2024 RZE-MEFZR

=+-H (159,240) (903,991) (11,073) (254,754) (16,618) (13,990) (1,359,666)
Net book value: RS
At31 December 2024 RZEMEFZA

=+-8 18006 1073045 249021 , , 1,643,479

At31December 2023 REZZE+IA

={-8 193731 1,101,342 - 100978 16 52206 91 1448964
During the years ended 31 December 2024 RBEEZEONERERZZEZ=
and 2023, no property, plant and equipment +ZRA=+T—HLEE HiE®Y
were pledged as collateral for bank. X BEARBCEMABBITER
KR G o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI R M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERSZE #E
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) EREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- TREEENRE FEREMEE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is EFER oMU
as follows:

2024 2023

—EME ey
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(I AES T PN S

Leasehold land held for own use, F{EEABEE i

carried at depreciated cost BITE R AR 0] 52,104
Other properties leased for own M EEE R EM
use, carried at depreciated cost ¥ % > IR EE Rl A
HIBR (ii) 102
52,206
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 MZEBEKR&E @)
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) EREEE @
The analysis of expense items in relation RERFPEINEEERMBAZIE
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as BT .
follows:

2024 2023

—EME [y

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mz PNEEEE ARBETIT

Depreciation charge of ZERAE EERTIR
right-of-use assets by HEREEEITE
class of underlying asset: % :
Leasehold land held for FEERMEE
own use ) (i) 1,698
Other properties leased for HEMEERD
own use Hihip (ii) 203
1,901
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEMNER
(note 5(a)) (Kt 5E5(a)) 7
Expense relating to HIGHAE E BRI
short-term leases (note 5(c)) (FFzE5(c)) 201
During the year ended 31 December 2024 REE_E_MER_ZE_-_=
and 2023, there is no additions to right-of- +_B=+—HLtFE -UELRE
use assets. FREESE-
Details of total cash outflow for leases and HMENEREMHRENREESRE
the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set B B HR 2 M7 2 5F 1B 2 Bl #1552 B
out in notes 17(c) and 21, respectively. E17(c) k221 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Leasehold land held for own use

The Group holds several leasehold
lands, which lump sum payments were
paid to PRC government authorities,
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted. It carried at depreciated
cost and depreciation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the respective periods of the land
use rights.

Other properties leased for own
use

The Group has obtained the right to use
other properties as its office buildings
and staff dormitory through tenancy
agreements. The leases typically run for
an initial period of 2 to 3 years. Lease
payments are usually increased every
2 or 3 years to reflect market rentals.
None of the leases includes variable
lease payments.

n‘7|_\

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

Rk eSS

(B BB UN R THT)

11 ME-BERRE @

(b) EREEE &)
(i)

I

(i)

T

fBi

FFIEE B E LY

REEFEER T E B
WAABAN —REMRNAE
T FHEHEBA30E50
F oz F I HIRITE AT BR
RiTEZ T EREIERA
FHUEGEERBS R

HEFEBBIR MY %

AEBEZBEE WG E
RBEMYMEER/BREFT R
ETEENEN 2FHES
BYFEBAR2EIF -HEN
M—MRAE2HIFE LA —R
URBHSEE - HEEER
ERE2EEMMe

NE | ZECREEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- %‘2 $E % I“_.I- J-I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREEE
Pollutant
emission
rights Software Total
HESHE B st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARET T

Cost: 5% 4
At 1 January 2023, 31 December W_ZE_=F£—HF—H-
2023 and 1 January 2024 —E=F+ZHA=1+—H
ER—E-_NE—-B—H 2,892 42 2,934
Additions HE 85 - 85
At 31 December 2024 AZEME+"F=+—H

Accumulated amortization: Bt .

At 1 January 2023 A2 =F—HA—H
Charge for the year FRER
At 31 December 2023 and A ZEZ=F+ZHA=+—H

1 January 2024 RZZZHF—HA—H (1,481) (27) (1,508)
Charge for the year FNER (739) (4) (743)
At 31 December 2024 A ZEME+ZA=+—H (2,220) (31) (2,251)
Net book value: IRTER(E -
At 31 December 2024 RI2ZWF+ZA=+—H
At 31 December 2023 R_EZ=F+"HF=+—H 1,411 15 1,426
The amortisation charge of RMB743,000 FREBHBAIZAR®KE743,000T (ZF
(2023: RMB709,000) for the year is included — =% AR%709,0007T) Bt ALEE
in “depreciation and amortisation” in the BRmRANTEREHE P

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI R M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

13 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 13 HMIERBEE

2024 2023
—ETE e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx PNE:S

Prepayment of maintenance service fee FBIRERBEE 31,384 21,848
Other non-current asset represents the prepaid HMERHEERKRBILE - A HERD
maintenance service fee for the daily repair and RENHEHEERGERBNENRE
maintenance service provided by an independent BRFEE o

third-party supplier.

14 INVENTORIES 14 #&

2024 2023

ZEIME [t
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEL:Swr
Spare parts B 57,108 57,162
Materials and supplies Yyl K (e 1,059 1,059
Low value consumables REEHER 210 244

58,377 58,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R M HwRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of
shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

B RATNKE
TREFETEXELERBXE BE
HEENHRBATNFE FREER
Sh R RIDEBRI B E B -

Percentage of
Place and date €Uty attributable to Issued and
of establishment/ the Company fully paid-up/ Principal
incorporation w registered capital country Principal
Name of company I/ #MAL Direct Indirect BRARYRE/ of operation activity
NG HERAS i A HRES TEREER TEEH
Puxing Tian (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$193,663,941/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
(*Puxing Tian") 26 June 2008 Not applicable
ZEX (5% BRAF (BEX) &% 100% - 193,663,9417875,/ HEEE RERK
Z2EN\ERAZTRE TER
Puxing Xing (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$98,844,399/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
(Puxing Xing") 26 June 2008 Not applicable
28 (FH) BRAT (TEER) ) 100% - 98,844,300,/ HEEE REZR
Z2EN\ERAZTRE TER
Puxing Neng (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$75,624,511/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
(*Puxing Neng’) 26 June 2008 Not applicable
28 (FR) BRAT (TEER) ) 100% - 75,624,517/ HEEE REZR
Z2EN\ERAZTRE TER
Puxing An (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$1/  Hong Kong, China  Investment holding
2 September 2008 Not applicable
227 (5% BRAT &% 100% - 137/ TER HhEEE RERK
“EZ\ENAZH
Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas Power The PRC - 100% US$17,171,400/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. i 15 December 2004 US$17,171,400
MIEEERRREBERAT) HE - 100% 17,171 40027/ e B

“EEMET-ATEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

15 RIBATNKE @

(Continued)

Percentage of
Place and date  €auity attributable to Issued and
of establishment/ the Company fully paid-up/ Principal
incorporation w registered capital country Principal
Name of company FR 3L/ S AR Direct Indirect BEATRER/ of operation activity
RE4TE LETTEE] Eff % HMES TEREEX TERH
Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power The PRC S 100% US$16,660,000/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. () 6 January 2005 US$16,660,000
MIEERBAREBERAT) HE - 100% 16,660,000% 7/ e %z
ZZ2R5-F5H 16,660,000% 75
Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power The PRC S 100% US$18,408,710/ The PRC  Power generation
Go., Ltd. i) 18 August 2004 US$18,408,710
WIEEEEAREEERAH) HE - 100% 18,408,710%7,/ HE BB
ZE2ZMENATE 18,408,710 70
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power The PRC - 100% US$46,011,933/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. () 25 February 2011 US$46,011,933 and heat supply
EE (27) MBEABERAH() HE - 100% 46,011933% 7/ HE BERMA
“£——%£"B”1+5H 46,011,933% 70
Wenling Juneng Wind Power Generation The PRC S 78% RMB4,000,000/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. {"Wenling Power Plant") ii)(v) 3July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (under design and
planning stage)
RERERNEEERAF (TREZH) (i) HE - 8% ARH4,0000007,/ E BE (R R
“Z-mEtA=AH A %50,000,0007T 9]
Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power The PRC S 100% RMB300,000,000/ The PRC  Power generation
Co., Ltd. i) 30 November 2011 RMB300,000,000 and heat supply
BN EERIRAZER A HE - 100% AR 300,000,000t/ HE BEREA
Z2——F+-A=1H AR 300,000,0007

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise established under the PRC
law with limited liability

Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise established under
the PRC law with limited liability

Limited liability company established under the PRC law.

Wenling Power Plant went into dissolution and was
deregistered on 30 December 2024.

RBEPBERRIMNIIBEREEESREERE

i: RIBEREERRINTIEGERREERR

ii: RIEREZRRINEREERR

Iv: BEBRN T _ME+ "B =+ BRI
HE D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

r o 75 AR MY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BWE Z KHEHMIRIE

2024 2023
CEDME e

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
(iEdl AR®Tr BNEeT

45,921 46,086

(i) 13,836 12,904

910 3,098

60,667 62,088

Trade receivables FEUR & 5 =18

Prepayments FEfI I

Other receivables Hih g sia

() Prepayments (i) FE(MFHRIE

The balance of prepayments as at 31
December 2024 mainly represents the
prepayment for purchase of natural gas and
maintenance service fee.

All of the trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as
expense within one year.

At 31 December 2024, ageing analysis of
trade receivables of the Group based on the
invoice date is as follows:

BE—_Z_NE+-_H=+—H
Y T8 BB A5 4 B 5 M B R 2
R iR ER TR TRIE

PRERWE 5k HMmRIATER ]
R —E R EI SR AR

R_ZE_MFE+"B=+—H'%&
EERWESRELEZAHM
ERBRES DATAO T ©

2024 2023
TEINF i

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARRTR NG

Within 1 month — @A MR 45,921 45,868
After 1 year but within 2 years BiE—FEMERN - 218
46,086
As of 31 December 2024, trade and other HE_Z_UE+_A=+—H ' EW
receivables of RMB3,580,000 (2023: Nil) were T%&Hﬁﬁﬂlﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁﬁs 580,0007¢ (=

pledged as security for bank loans.

T%O
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

17 RERREFEVMUREMTEE
mER
() RERAEEB/EMEE !

Cash and cash equivalents REEEMBERIETR

in the consolidated statement of
financial position and consolidated
statement of cash flows

meRERERNREER
REFEY

2024 2023
CEIME e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRx BNEL:Swr
114,458 130,719

Reconciliation of liabilities arising
from financing activities

The table below details changes in the
Group’s liabilities from financing activities,
including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows as
cash flows from financing activities.

(b)

37
=

£5

METHEEREAEHRKR

TREIMETHAELESEH
BEZEFHFE BREREERIFR
TEY - METHELEZARRETS
HESREELKTARARREARE
RRAEBRGRERERDE
ARELPEEZHRERENEG

f&e

EERRAR | —E-mEFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEFEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEIFBHEEEGREHK @)

from financing activities (Continued)

Interesting-
bearing Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings loan liabilities Total
it EEE RERER HEAR st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTR ARBTR AREBTR ARETR
(note 19) (note 18) (note 21)
(Ms£19) (Mizx18) (MfsE21)

At 1 January 2024 RZE_ME
—HA—H 715,375 112,866 828,337
Changes from financing REREREZ
cash flows: =)
Capital element of lease BNHEEREN
rentals paid BEARH - (98)
Proceeds from new loans WERZMEHIE 580,000 580,000
Repayment of loans BEER (582,890) (582,890)
Total changes from MEREREZ
financing cash flows =L ECE S (2,890) (2,988)
Other adjustments: HithzRE
Exchange adjustments ERAE
Net increase in accrued FEst R SRS M
interest expense =l
At 31 December 2024 RZE_WmE
+=B=+-—H 712,506 120,269 832,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ﬁ'& $E % |31__|- I:II

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEFEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEFEBELEEBHIR @)

from financing activities (Continueq)

Interesting-
bearing  Consideration  Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings payable loan liabilities Total
StEEE EAAE REEM HERE w5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR  ARBTR ARETR ARETT ARETR

(note 19) (note 18) (note 21)
(MEE19) (Msx18) (HizE21)

At 1 January 2023 R-E-=F-B-H 745,755 106,655 106,506 271 959,187
Changes from financing HEREHEZEH .

cash flows:
Capital element of BEREERENERRH

lease rentals paid - - - (175) (175)
Proceeds from new loans  HTEFZF1GHUIE 418,009 - - - 418,009
Repayment of loans BEER (448,319) - - - (448,319)
Payment for acquisition of ~ FEURBEHEEIZEHITHY

Quzhou Power Plant under &M E /(T

common control - (95,851) - - (95,851)
Total changes from MERSREZEHESE

financing cash flows (30,310) (95,851) - (175) (126,336)
Other adjustments: Hith:R% .
Exchange adjustments ERAE - - 1,576 - 1,576
Net (decrease)/increase in ~ FE5HFI SR AF CAlL)

accrued interest expense /1211 (70) (10,804) 4,784 = (6,090)
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=&

+-A=+-A 715,375 - 112,866 % 828,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the consolidated
statement of cash flows for leases comprise
the following:

RekREFEMUREMETEE
MER #)

(c) HMEZRERNEE
MEESAGERERERNE
BT

Within operating cash flows

STAKERETRE
Within financing cash flows Eai

StARER

I

These amounts relate to the following:

BENEEEE

Lease rentals paid

2024 2023
—EF Py
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PNEL: S
342
175
517
ZESEEDTHEERR
2024 2023
—EMF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET PNEL: R
98 517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise /nd/cated)

18 SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

2024 2023
—ENF g ——

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ESELRT

Principal amount KEEE
s EMX

Accrued interest expense

100,435 98,286
19,834 14,580

120,269 112,866

As at 31 December 2024, the outstanding
principal amount of shareholder’s loan due
to Puxing International Limited (“Puxing
International”), the immediate controlling company
of the Company, was HK$108,457,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB100,435,000) (31
December 2023: HK$108,457,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB98,286,000)), bearing interest
at 4.9% per annum.

The above outstanding principal and related
interest were due on 30 December 2022, but has
not been repaid as at 31 December 2024. The
Group is negotiating repayment arrangement with
Puxing International, and the shareholder’s loan is
repayable on demand as at 31 December 2024.

R_E_WNE+_B=+—H E[
ARBIEBRZERACDEEHKEER AT
(TE2EE) WAEERRERELE
2874108,457,0008 7t (BERHNAR
#100,435,00070) (ZE-_=ZF+_A4
=+—H : 108,457,000 7T (FBERH
AR #98,286,0007T)) * EF]ZE4.9%
=4

LR EENAECELERBAAIENR T
_TE+B=+HI BREEC
ZTMNFE+ZA=+—HBEKREERE K
EELrHEZEERHBEERLTH MK
BERAR _E-_NE+_"_B=+—H
BEREIE

I
]
&
D
o

AT | cE-mEFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘7|_\

LR E e

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

19 st EfEE

Secured B
Bank loans RITER
Unsecured E
Loans from related parties RIEH BN
Bank loans WITEMR

Reconciliation to the consolidated 4 &HBRRERZ

statement of financial position: HER -
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

neaml

FERBEAR

At 31 At 31
December December
2024 2023
iy IS

ZEIME -t
+=8 +=A
=+—H =+—A
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
NI ARETr PNEL:Sr
(i) 115,500 -
(if) 516,826 642,607
(iii) 80,180 72,768
712,506 715,375
179,713 374,575
532,793 340,800
712,506 715,375

As at 31 December 2024, secured bank loan
with a carrying amount of RMB115,500,000
was secured by trade and other receivables
with the carrying amount of RMB3,580,000
and was guaranteed by Wanxiang Group, the
ultimate controlling company of the Group.
The secured bank loan bears annual interest
rate of 3.21% and will be repayable from
2025 to 2029.
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R_E_WE+-BA=+—H" kK
mEA AR®115,500,000cH A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
i 1 7

B 5 ¥ 2= MY 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(if

(i)

Unsecured loans from related parties as at
31 December 2024 represented loans and
accrued interest expense from Wanxiang
Finance of RMB516,826,000 (31 December
2023: RMB642,607,000), which borne
interest at 3.45% - 3.70% per annum (31
December 2023: 3.45% - 3.70%) and will be
repayable from 2025 to 2027.

As at 31 December 2024, unsecured bank
loans of RMB80,180,000 were subject to the
fulfilment of certain financial covenants of
the Group and will be repayable in 2025. If
the Group was to breach the covenants, the
drawn down facility would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 December 2024, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facility had been
breached.

(B BB UN R THT)

19 D-i-ll_;\{ S g)

(if

(i)

E\_v_lﬂlﬁ‘f’ B=+—H®
HIRFRAESENIEXREEDH
BHE $A&J4Eu+%u%ﬁaﬂ§z)\l§¢}¥
516,826,000 0 (Z&E - =F+ =
B=+—H8: AR#642,607,000
7o) HTL R EFE3.45%E3.70%
(ZEZ=%F+ZB=+—8H":
3.45%FE3.70%) 5t B H%ﬁf:
“HEFETAHE IHHT

AZE_ME+"B=+—H’ A
K 180,180,000 C I EE(RIBITE
TEBITAREBRMNSEEE W
2025 FBE MR AEEE R
KO FTIRRMERBREREZ T
AREBBTCHEZAHEBELEZY
HETFBER - B#E_Z_WE+_
B=1+—H XEBREMHERENE
BN

AT | cE-mEEEES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- ?‘2 $E % I“_.I- J-I

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 ERNE S REMIE

2024 2023
—ETUE ey
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx PNE:S

Trade payables FE(T B 5 718 766 4,682
Construction payable FEAT IR ERRRIE 125,985 4,835
Accrued expenses and other payables FESTRA S e e S =B 6,486 3,951
Financial liabilities measured at BREIHER AT ENEME
amortised cost & 133,237 13,468
Salary payable & 4,056 4,758
Other taxes payable HEARE 5,473 7,418
142,766 25,644
As at 31 December 2024, the ageing analysis of A TENFE+ZE=+—H ' &&H
trade payables of the Group based on the invoice BB ZHIBREZEHBFENRE D
date, is as follows: T
2024 2023
—Eoms P
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEL R
Within 3 months ={EAN 766 4,682
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBI R M

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

21 LEASE LIABILITIES 21 HHE&R
At 31 December 2024, the lease liabilities were A B _NE+_H=+—H EEHE
repayable as follows: EadumT:

2024 2023
ZEMF e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR PG

Within 1 year —FRN 96
96
22 DEFERRED REVENUE 22 IRIEW I
2024 2023
TEINSE i
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T PNGLRWw
Government grants B #78 iy 10,624 10,694
The government grants are recognised as income BTN EEAPMEE ENERAR A
over the periods necessarily to match them with (BP 7% 7 R B R 48w B 0O AR AX) AR U FE
the related costs of assets constructed which they BRI AR AU A > BFERELF) & A
are intended to compensate over the periods and ZEBEMBREITENLEA—Ke

in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 REUBRARANAFR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) HZEEMFHIKRROBPEAIRIALS ¢
statement of financial position
represents:

2024 2023
—EME e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR PNELEwT

Balance at 1 January R—B—B&R 23,090 21,802
Provision for PRC Corporate FRPBETEMESREE

Income Tax for the year 23,064 26,099
Transferred from deferred tax DI ERE BIRIERIE

upon distribution of dividends 265 -
Corporate Income Tax paid B EEFAER (26,073) (24,811)
Balance at 31 December R+ZHA=+—HN4% 20,346 23,090

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) BHEZNEERESERAR

recognised:
Reconciliation to the consolidated statement REMBIRERZHER

of financial position

2024 2023
—ETMF e

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR PNELEwT

Net deferred tax assets iy $éﬁa‘ BRI RETN
recognised in the consolidated IRERIEE EFE
statement of financial position 6,119
Net deferred tax liabilities PR S MBI RERN
recognised in the consolidated FIERIEE BB
statement of financial position (32,089) (25,751)
(26,342) (19,632)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

23

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities

The component of deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated

I l‘l

(c) BEEREEERAGBSHEMED

BB R R RABNFRER @)

BB

FRARGAYBERIREINE
IEMIBEE (BfF) RESFHN

statement of financial position and the IS c
movements during the year are as follows:
Withholding
tax on
Property, profits
Property, plant and retained by
plantand  equipment- Unpaid the Group's
equipment- other  Government accrued Tax PRC
Deferred tax arising from depreciation  adjustments grants expenses losses  subsidiaries Total
i3]
ng BER HENBAT
n¥ BER R £ fREEm
EEANTEENELRE wfE-HE  -HEE B Eim% HEsH RIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 RIZZ=%-F-H (10,519) 4,154 2,118 2,701 3,446 (11,489) (8,934)
Recognised in consolidated REEBRERED
statement of profit or loss (301) 46 (100) (2,701) - (7,642) (10,698)

At 31 December 2023 and S

1 January 2024 +ZA=+-8k
“F-mE-A-H (10,820)
Recognised in consolidated REaBRRED
statement of profit or loss (675)

Transferred from deferred tax ~ HRREHEREL
liabilties upon distribution RESE
of dividends

At 31 December 2024 RIEZNE
+-B=+-R (11,495)

As at 31 December 2024, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB25,920,000 (20283:
RMB19,131,000) have been recognised in
connection with the withholding tax that
would be payable on the distribution of
the retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries. The applicable rate for the
Group is 10%.

ZEREEARAE | —E-mEFERSE

3,446

(355)

3,091

ATE_NE+"_BA=+—H"'EB
MAEETHBLAIRE HA
B9 53 K T FE S Y TR 40 AR FE R IR
MIEEEARE25,920,0007T (=
T =& AR#19,131,0007T) °

(19,131)

(7,054)

265

(25,920)

KEEMNBREA10%

(19,632)

(6,975)

265

(26,342)

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 HZEMBRIRANARFIR @

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KREZHELZERIEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been BARMUATIEERDRELERIEE
recognised in respect of the following items, B REERAKABERRKEZRR
because it is not probable that future taxable AR AEENFBBEN o

profit will be available against which the
Group can use the benefits therefrom.

31 December 2024 31 December 2023
—E_mE “EC=fF
+ZA=+—H +ZRA=+—H

Gross Tax Gross Tax
amount effect amount effect
ot HERE B MBTE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR NG SRTRNGL AT

Deductible temporary differences 7] #0075 & B = 28 40,538 10,135 50,282 12,571
Tax losses RIBEIE 13,691 3,423 15,099 3,543

54,229 13,558 65,381 16,114
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
n‘7|_\ j- %‘z $E %E Iﬂj- I:II

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 REUBRARANARIFIR (&

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) FKERIRERIESE &)
(Continued)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations RIEPEAMESABNERERA
in the mainland China and Hong Kong, the KIERAF > RERSAERNKERMR
unrecognised tax losses at the end of the BEHEBEERUTEMHEE
reporting period will expire in the following
years:

2024 2023
ZEIME i

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR PG

2024 “EIWEF 8
2025 —E"HF 1,612
2026 ZEIREF 104
2027 —TE 11
2028 “BN\EF 10,644
Unexpired* R 2,720
15,099
* The tax losses under Hong Kong tax jurisdiction can * EARBEEAEEE THNREEETR
be utilised against the future taxable profits derived LUK BB BN E B EENRKER
from Hong Kong by the relevant entity, and do not MiaF > RIFBVITNB A A GHEEA

expire under current tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

24 BEX-HERRE
(a) AR ZEE

FERGFSE@T S MO FENEF
Bmi D 2 B RERZHRE

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the RiGERmEBR o A A B E7F)#
consolidated statement of changes in equity. mE D ENEERZEFHFEBUW
Details of the changes in the Company’s i

individual components of equity between the

beginning and the end of the year are set out

186

below:
The Company FARE
Share  Contributed Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital surplus reserve reserve losses equity
f A BNRER LN ERE ZEEE B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREBTT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2023 R-B-=FE—-A—-AMNER 40,149 347,379 26,065 2,679 (37,174) 379,098
Changes in equity for 2023: “ECCEERE.
Loss for the year FRE#R - - - - (6,354) (6,354)
Other comprehensive income Htt2@EBA - - - 2,215 - 2,215
Total comprehensive income FRE2EBALE
for the year - - - 2,215 (6,354) (4,139)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZBZ=fF+ZA=+—-H
H&E e 40,149 347,379 26,065 4,894 (43,528) 374,959
Share  Contributed Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital surplus reserve reserve losses equity
2 BARSR BFfE ERfE RHER LY
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE%FR ARETrR AE%ETn AERETx AR%TR ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2024 R-B-mE-A-ANER 40,149 347,379 26,065 4,894 (43,528) 374,959
Changes in equity for 2024: S MEEGEE.
Loss for the year FRBE (10,802) (10,802)
Other comprehensive income Hi2EWRA - 8,044
Total comprehensive income FRZEBALE

for the year

Balance at 31 December 2024

RZE-mE+ZB=+—-BH
&8 40,149

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R M L

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital

24

Authorised: BE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each SREE0.10BTZEBK
No. of
shares

Ordinary shares, B NE

issued and fully paid

EERCETRAR

At 1 January and R—B—-Bk

31 December +-B=+-H 458,600,000

Reserves

(c)
(i) Share premium

The application of the share premium
account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.
(ii) Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity
component of convertible bonds issued
by the Company in the previous years.

2024
—ZomE

Amount
i ]
HK$’000

TR

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

BER-RERRE #®
(b) Ba7s
2024 2023
ZEmE “ET=F
No. of No. of
shares shares Amount
EH%E = b G|
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FTEn
1,000,000,000 LKL 1,000,000,000 100,000
2023
“FC=E
Amount No. of Amount
equivalent to shares Amount  equivalent to
ERER RAHE 2B eEAER
RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB'000
ARETR TEL ARETET
458,600,000 45,860 40,149

45,860

(c) f#fE
(i) RBRHHEE
B aBRNERBZSHRE A

BABERE
(i) BXEFE
BERAFEEREEAATDNBEE
BTz oEBBRESHNRTT
FERERIEDEDECAIERE
BEREEARAT | —E-—nesEEs
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AN
wh A

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

(iii) Merger reserve

Merger reserve mainly represents:

(@)

the excess of the aggregate of
paid-in capital of the subsidiaries
comprising the Group pursuant
to a reorganisation completed
in June 2009 for the listing (the
“Reorganisation”) of the Group
over the consideration paid by
the Company, representing the
nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange
thereof; and

the adjustment of elimination of
paid-in capital of Quzhou Power
Plant with the consideration in
relation to the acquisition that
Deneng Power Plant acquired
100% equity interests in Quzhou
Power Plant from Shanghai Pu-
Xing Energy Limited (“Shanghai
Puxing”) (business combination
under common control) completed
on 30 September 2020.
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24 BEX-RERKRE @

(c) R =)

(iii) BOHEE
B EBTIEIE

(@)

FEERBETHRBRER
BAEER _SSNEF
NAMLET TR ZER
(ME#4) BERMRAELR
BEBAXRBMNAE
(BN 2= 2 B) 5 2 IR P
BORMPHNEE) 2¥
R

LB _—_ZE _ZTFANA
Z+tHERMEES
B ERERDAD
(TEasZa)) WiEE M
B H100% 8% E B Uk B8 =
B (HREEZEHRITHWESS
) BRI B B M
B EHIRAHIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

i [

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c)

Reserves (Continued)

(iv) Contributed surplus

v)

Contributed surplus represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of
Puxing Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing
Tian determined on the basis of the
consolidated net assets of Puxing
Neng, Puxing Xing and Puxing Tian at
the date of the Reorganisation over the
nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange thereof.

Statutory surplus reserve

Statutory surplus reserves were
established in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations
and the articles of association of those
companies comprising the Group
which are established in the PRC until
the reserve balance reached 50% of
their registered capital. Appropriations
to the reserves were approved by the
respective board of directors.

For the entity concerned, statutory
surplus reserves can be used to make
good previous years’ losses, if any,
and may be converted into capital
in proportion to the existing equity
interests of investors, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not
less than 25% of the registered capital.

24

(c)

37
=

2

PN
A

(B BB UN R THT)

BEX-fERRE @

#fs (&)
(iv) BAZER

v)

=
=1

BMABBRERBESESRE S£
BREERGEEEFERE
ENZSER -BEEREERXR
RN EMLABBHNAFER
BARBIERXMPAETR
MPHEEZ B8R -

AEBERIHE

R TE B R R R IR R R B AE
B 38 TE Ko 7R 3R LA R 7 R B A
YWAEBRE TR ATNE
BERMBRIL BEEHES
FREINREZMEANS0%
mE-REENECRESTE
HEHE o

ERBENZEZERFRHRERN
AREHENEFEERNER (0
B) TRRREERARE
EEf B ER HERE
NEHFATLREMEESN
25%-°

ERRAE | —E-mEFEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BAR-#EKRKRE #)
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (d BKRE
(i) Dividends payable to equity () FAELETEL G
shareholders of the Company RERE

attributable to the year

2024 2023
ZEIME it
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE R
Final dividend proposed REBHAREZERBRE
after the reporting date of &RR0.0147 7T
HK$0.014 (2023: HK$ Nil) (ZTBE-=ZF:E8B7)
per share =
The final dividend proposed after the REPRBNESZRERE
end of the reporting period has not RREHAREGRERAHEE

been recognised as a liability at the end
of the reporting period.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(Continued)

(e)

(B BB UN R THT)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BAR-#HEKRKRE #&)
Special Reserve (e) HIAMKE
At 1 At 31
January December
2024 Accrued Utilised 2024
®
i —EomE
—EME +=RB
—A—H 55/3: esm =+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT ARETT AR®BTT
Safety production fund Z&24£EEH 2,468 7,727 (8,296) 1,899

Special reserve represents the safety
production fund accrued according to the
article of [2022] No.136 “The regulation on
the accrual and usage of enterprise’s safety
production fund”, issued by the Ministry of
Finance and State Administration of Work
Safety on 13 December 2022.

The fund is earmarked for improving the
safety of production. The fund is accrued
from retained earnings to special reserve and
converted back to retained earnings when
utilised.

37
=

2

PN
A

EERFEERBEVERBERERZ
PHEEEBREBERN _E -
F+IZHE+=H#&#[2022]136
X (bEZ2EEERRERNE
REBWA)HEZE2EEER-

ZE2EEEREMANTEENXK
ErEREEERT -RE2EEE
AREFRARENRESERRFEBIL
REBAKBLREFRN -

EEAMRAT | ZB-mEFEERS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4o A
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R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(f)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of a net debt-to-total capital
ratio. For this purpose, net debt is defined
as total debt (which includes all interest-
bearing borrowings, shareholder’s loan,
lease liabilities, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is
calculated as equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company, as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial
position, plus net debt.

In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.
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BEX-ERRE @

(f)

B4 ER
AEEEEREEANETEENER
EXAEEREREENAFEL
ER UEESNFERRREF D
BRAEMB N E I LR
RRENEXEE FEEELN
o

FEEREBRERRNTIEERLE
RIRE B REBERSEE AR
i iR R B AR B E RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R MR R M L

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24
(Continued)

(f)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group’s net debt-to-capital ratio at 31
December 2024 and 2023 was as follows:

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

BEXREERRE @

(H BWHEE @)
MoB-MER-B-=F+=
A=+—B AEENFEEES
LT

< hp sy s ¢ 31 December
2024 2023

—EME e

+=A +=7

=+—H [T

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s WNTESM ARBTR

18 120,269 112,866
19 179,713 374,575
21 - 96

299,982 487,537

19 532,793 340,800

Current liabilities: MEEE
Shareholder’s loan REBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings STEEE
Lease liabilities HEas
Non-current liabilities: JEREEE
Interest-bearing borrowings STREE
Total debt B 4EEE

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

B RERREFEY

832,775 828,337
17 (114,458) (130,719)

Net debt

Total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company

BEH

$’Aé$&”ﬂx%ﬁ§1ﬁ

718,317 697,618

876,280 816,130

Total capital

BEX

1,594,597 1,613,748

Net debt-to-capital ratio

FABHEESIE

45.05% 46.09%
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(f) Capital management (Continued)

Under a loan agreement of the Group, there
is a fulflment of certain financial covenants
(see note 19). If the Group was to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facility would
become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. As at 31 December 2024, none
of the covenants relating to drawn down
facility had been breached.

Except above mentioned subsidiary, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

° credit risk

° liquidity risk

o market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring

and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.
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rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(@) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet
its contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group’s receivables from
customers.

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis. The Group
does not provide any guarantees which
would expose the Group to credit risk.

The cash and cash equivalents of the Group
are mainly held with well-known financial
institutions. Management does not foresee
any significant credit risks from these
deposits and does not expect that these
financial institutions may default and cause
losses to the Group.

(B BB UN R THT)

25 EFRTH #)

(a) EERAMKE
EERMIESERIENETLER
SHAEAXREBERTANEAMS K
EEATNUEEERR TBR
BREEEKRETRRIE

EE SO

AEENEERREIEZRBEE
RETEBYURBKRE S REHE
B BEEEEH I EERR
TRHEERZEEERAR ~&H
WAREEFCAEEBHEER
R HYIE (AT FR

FEENRERBEEFTENTIE
RAOaNEREERE -EEER
SARFERAIGELEEFEKRE
ERk BRI SFTmMEER5E
TEEOKRLSAEREBREGR-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M HwRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

In respect of trade and other receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed
on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are
due within 10 to 30 days from the date of
billing. Debtors with balances that are more
than the credit term given by the Group are
generally requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted.
Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer rather
than the industry or country in which the
customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise
when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, 93.23% (2023: 91.30%)
and 98.45% (2023: 95.66%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s
largest customer (including its subsidiaries)
and five largest customers respectively.
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25 EFRTH #)
(a) Credit risk (Continued) (a) EERARKE &)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued) EEREKO &)

MEWE Z R EMRIEMS > &
EEnEkBE—ExBEEZ
PREERETEENE - ILEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
trade receivables at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. No ECLs were provided as
at 31 December 2024 as the Group has
limited customers with no historical credit
loss experience and management assessed
the impact of ECLs is insignificant. Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
trade and other receivables are set out in
note 16.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when they are due, under both normal
and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to
the Group’s reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

(B BB UN R THT)

25 EMT R #@)

(a) EERARE &)
EEmREMO (#)
FEENEBREZRANEER
BUMEERBEFERNERGE
EHEENERAE- R T IUF
+TA=+—HIEERBHREER
BEEHEE DEAREEERRR
HEERETEBEEEEGEREK
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FETRBER -ARAEEMEH
BUWEBSRHEMREBEEENEE
B E MR E RN MIFE16°
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NYETARELAEBRTERETH
U RENEMEMEEZD
NENZzERMEFfERZEER
BEIR R -

FEBEERDEETN T ERE
EERZMNBERTESERFRE
FEHTBNRSESEE D
BEEMAEEEEEZRENER
HEBRTEENEE-

AEENBREREENERAEHR
NRBEETERURETEER
MHBERN BARAEEERF AR

SHBERESTESRMSEAS
RSB o B (IR R
RBESER

ZEREFRAT | —E-mEFERS

197



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kr e M B IR M AE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25 ERIT A &)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) REEZRAE &

The following are the remaining contractual L)(‘F%E‘%Ei BN EMEES
maturities of financial liabilities at the NERRBE R -ZEHEAERE B
reporting date. The amounts are gross and ﬂi%%?ﬁfﬁ ’FETETE%Jr%'J BEfME
undiscounted, and include estimated interest EIt R HHEBENFE
payments and exclude the impact of netting
agreements:

At 31 December 2024
RZE-RE+ZA=+-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

BHRRERRZRER

More than ~ Morethan ~ More than ~ More than
Within 3 months 6 months 9months 1 year but

3 months or but less than but less than but less than less than Carrying
ondemand  6months 9 months 5 years Total amount
Ak RB=ER ©A&XER & Bia-£
FRERE BORAMEAR BORAEA d BOREE @t FEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR AREBTR T ARBTn AEBTIR ARETR
Interest-bearing borrowings GHEEE i 46,087 5,726 33,659 116,237 556,212 757,921 712,506
Trade and other payables B ERREMAE 79,155 53,761 16 305 - 133,237 133,237

Shareholder’s loan RREX i 120,269 - - - - 120,269 120,269

245,511 59,487 33,675 116,542 556,212 1,011,427 966,012

At 31 December 2023
RZBZ=F+"A=+-H

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

AHUERERRZRERY

More than ~ Morethan ~ More than  More than

Within 3 3 months 6 months 9months 1 year but
months or  but less than  but less than  but less than less than Carrying
on demand 6 months 9 months 1 year 5 years Total amount

—fERn RB=FF BE~ES BBrER BB-F
RRERE BORAER BORAER BOR-% EIREE st REE
Note RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
M ARETR ARBTrn ARETR AR%Tn ARETR ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing borrowings AEEE i 6,413 206,421 21,321 161,107 359,514 754,776 715,375
Trade and other payables ENEZREMTE 12,941 82 216 229 = 13,468 13,468
Shareholder's loan BRER (i) 112,866 = = S - 112866 112,866
Lease liabilities HEAE - 98 - - - 98 9%

132,220 206,601 21,637 161,336 359,514 881,208 841,80
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(c)

(i) In respect of interest-bearing borrowings as at
31 December 2024, the related interest-bearing
borrowings of RMB46.1 million due within 3 months
or on demand had been repaid up to the date of the
approval of these financial statements.

(if) The shareholder’s loan was over due as of 31
December 2023 and 2024. The Group is negotiating
repayment arrangement with Puxing International.

Note 2(b) explains management’s plans for managing liquidity
needs of the Group to enable it to continue to meet its
obligations as they fall due.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control
market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the return.

(i) Currency risk

The Group’s major businesses are
conducted by the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. As the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries’ functional currency
is RMB and their businesses are
principally conducted in RMB, the
Group considers the currency risk to be
insignificant.

(B BB UN R THT)

25 EFRTH #)

(b) REEZRE &
(i) MR _ME+"B=+—AMtE
BEMs RZEARIPRIZERE
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E 2R REERLH

MaE2b)EEEREHAEBRBESFTRY
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X)) SEhg ZBAREBUWA ST
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ENEEAEERRNER  E12
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B IRARMIEE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25 ERIT A @)
(c) Market risk (Continued) (c) ™HIZREKE @)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) () EEmEE &)

The Company and the Hong Kong KRB REBNELQBNIN
subsidiaries’ functional currency is EEEEAAT HEBEFENU
Hong Kong dollar and their borrowings AT ETTET BERN BT
are principally conducted in Hong EHE NEBRTA BT
Kong dollar or United States Dollar. METzBEXRESHN AR
As the Hong Kong dollar is pegged B

to the United States dollar, the Group
considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States
Dollar to be insignificant.

(ii) Interest rate risk (i) FEmE
The Group’s interest rate risk XEEBNMEXEAREERE
arises primarily from cash and RERREEFEY st EE
cash equivalents, interest-bearing E-RREREKHEEGE K
borrowings, shareholder’s loan and EEFERERBEENEER
lease liabilities. The Group manages its FEEEHACEEHEEHEN
interest rate exposure by maintaining a MR g o
prudent mix of fixed and variable rate
borrowings.
The Group is not exposed to significant AEBUTEMRBEERIRES
interest rate risk for cash and cash BYMAZEARF AR It
equivalents because the interest rates ThAHRFERRTRENER
of cash at bank are not expected to EEEKREF-

change significantly.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

R MR R M L

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

25 @I H @

(c) HIZEEE (&)
(i) FIFEmEE (&)

At the end of the reporting period, RIREPR > ZEBENFEE
the interest rate profile of the Group’s MEENFEASWT

interest-bearing financial liabilities was

as follows:

2024 2023
—E-mE “ET=E
Effective Effective

interest interest
rate rate

BRAE BRAE
RMB’000 % RMB'000
ARBFR % ARETR

Fixed rate borrowings:

Shareholder’s loan
Lease liabilities

Variable rate borrowings:

Bank loans
Loans from related parties

EREE:

HEER

BEfEE:

RTERM

WELER

120,269 4.9% 112,866

= 4.75% 96

120,269 112,962

2.96% - 3.5% 195,680 3.5% 72,768
3.45% - 3.7% G KPLN 3.45% - 3.7% 642,607
712,506 715,375

832,775 828,337
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Market risk (Continued)
(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for
fixed rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for
variable rate borrowings

At 31 December 2024, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
by approximately RMB5,344,000 (2023:
RMB5,365,000).

The sensitivity analysis above
indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity that would arise
assuming that the change in interest
rates had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk at the end
of the reporting period. The impact
on the Group’s profit after tax and
consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26

27

Rk eSS

n\7r\

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise /nd/cated)

COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December
2024 not provided for in the consolidated financial
statements were as follows:

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

26 K

RTETME+—A=+—H8 EER
FREMBRRBBINRENESRKE
SHBENMT

2024 2023

—EME e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET BN S
Authorised but not contracted for BER#EERITN 40,833 219,488
Contracted for HES| 12,566 56,167
53,399 275,655

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2024,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions.

Name of party

RES 4TE

27 ERFEABARS

BE_ TN+ RA=+—HLFE"
BETIANLTZR SRR AR5 -

Relationship

[E3

Puxing International

= 2R

Wanxiang Group

EO&EH

Wanxiang Finance

BRI
China Wanxiang
FEEM

Shanghai Puxing
LiEE

Immediate controlling company

EREZERAT

Ultimate controlling company
REERATE

Fellow subsidiary

EIEN b= NS

A company controlled by Mr. Lu, who is the
ultimate controlling party of the Company

HARBRKIERASBREEFNAT

Fellow subsidiary
EENGIEYNET

I
]
&
D
o

AE | cE-mEsEEs
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r o R 75 AR MY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBMARS #)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(a) Material related party transactions and (a) HRAEGAETHERRBAERS
balances with related parties RELeR
The Group entered into the following material
related party transactions: 2 .
2024
—E-ME
RMB’000
AREFw
(Withdrawal from)/net deposit in ~ FIA TFRABEA (REY)
FRBRE
Wanxiang Finance B (26,748)
Loans from RESEMR
Wanxiang Finance B m B 374,500
Loans repaid to BEMERER
Shanghai Puxing tEE -
Wanxiang Finance BRI 500,200
Consideration payable repaid to  {EiZE{I{{E
Shanghai Puxing Hab=a=s
Interest Income FEKA
Wanxiang Finance BB

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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2023
—®-=

RMB’000
ARBT T

41,260

324,800

70,000
287,800

95,851
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN B BETST)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

27

Material related party transactions
and balances with related parties

(Continued)

ERMMARS #)

(a) HMBBAETHEAMBAERS

R (@)

Interest expenses

Wanxiang Finance
Shanghai Puxing

— Interest-bearing borrowings

— Consideration payable
Puxing International

Loan guarantee provided by

Wanxiang Group

2024
—E-UE
RMB’000
AREFT

MERE

B %

e

— stEEE

— ENRE

Z 2R

B TR AR

BRER

BREE 283,548

The balances arising from the significant
transactions between the Group and the
above related parties as at 31 December

2024 are as follows:

A TETNE+"R=+—H'%&
EEELARBASNERT PR

EERGEERIT ¢

2024
—E-ME
RMB’000
AR® T

18 (120,269)

Note
B 5T
Puxing International ZEFRK
— Shareholder’s loan — KREEWR
Wanxiang Finance BRI

— Interest-bearing borrowings

— Demand deposits

StREE
EHIER

19 (516,826)
100,626

2023

=

—_—<

RMB’000
ARBTT

21,268

2,183
4,846
4,784

2023

=

—_—<

RMB’000
ARBTT

(112,866)

(642,607)

127,374
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r o 75 AR MY 5

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 EXBMARS #)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Key management personnel
remuneration

Remuneration for key management
personnel of the Group, including amounts
paid to the Directors as disclosed in note 8
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

(b) FEEEFASHME

FERTEEEAEMNE (BEFER
MEE8MFTIRBEMNEE RINEIRN
FIENE TREHEEXNH
TR W

2024 2023
CTEINE el

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR PNELEWT

Short-term employee benefits RHEE R
Post-employment benefits BB EER

390 1,008
53 74

1,082

Total remuneration is included in “personnel
costs” (see note 5(b)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE B R AR M EE

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27 BEXEMAERZ (&)

TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Applicability of the Listing Rules (c) BRMEXRSNLEHRUZER

relating to connected transactions

The related party transactions in respect of
interest-bearing borrowings borrowed from
Puxing International and Wanxiang Finance
as disclosed in note 27(a) above constitute
continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
However, these transactions are financial
assistance received by the Group from a
connected person or commonly held entity
and are fully exempt from the disclosure
requirements under rule 14A.90 of the Listing
Rules.

The related party transactions in respect
of deposits in Wanxiang Finance
(including interests) as disclosed in note
27(a) constitute continuing connected
transactions and connected transaction
as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules respectively. The relevant disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed
“Transactions disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules” of the Directors’ report.

37
=

2
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A

BE
HREERRREODMBERY
SAREEERMMNEARS RS (N L
XM EE27(a) IR EE) B R A R X2
7 (EERLHRAUFE14AT) - R
M ZEXZHEEEEFEAL
HHFFEERWBBMBED
WOl RIBEFE14A 0K ELEE#A R
B EHARRABIIRERTE
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e MR

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(fr A3 BB UN R BB TST)

28 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 28

FINANCIAL POSITION

2024
—E-mE
Note RMB’000
eI AR T
Non-current asset ERBMEE
Interests in subsidiaries R E AT RIS (i) 544,479
544,479
Current assets RENEE
Other receivables Hh g =Ia
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEY
Current liabilities RENEE
Shareholder’s loan REER 18 120,269
Trade and other payables BT E 5 R EMRIE 52,159
172,428
Net current liabilities RENBESEE (172,278)
Total assets less current liabilities #EER A E 372,201
NET ASSETS BEFE 372,201
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERi#E
Share capital RN 24(b) 40,149
Reserves ] 24(c) 332,052
TOTAL EQUITY BlES 372,201

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2024

AEEERMBRITE

2023

=
—_—<

RMB’000
ARBTT

536,364

536,364

112,866
48,831

161,697

(161,405)

374,959

374,959

40,149
334,810

374,959



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(i)

Interests in subsidiaries

R MR R M L

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B35 B 15H85) LN B BT 5)77)
28 ABEEHMBRRE @)
() KB ABEEES
2024 2023
SECME [t

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR Gk

Investments in subsidiaries
Amounts due from subsidiaries

RBATINKRE 228,267 223,381
FE W B8 A Bl TR I8 316,212 312,983

544,479 536,364

Amounts due from subsidiaries are

BB ASREBENDEER 22

unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed T [E AR o

term of repayment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A H
4R

R 75 ¥ 7)Y 51

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(rFBEBS  UN R THT)

29 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

30

(@)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final
dividend. Further details are disclosed in
note 24(d).

An extraordinary general meeting held on
17 February 2025 approved the disposal of
51% of equity interest in Deneng Power Plant
(the “Target Company”) and its subsidiary,
Quzhou Power Plant (collectively hereinafter
referred to as the “Target Group”) to
Shunfa Hengneng Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of
Wanxiang Group, which is ultimate holding
company of the Company, the “Purchaser”)
at a cash consideration of RMB142.7
million. Upon completion of the disposal, the
Purchaser would hold 51% equity interest
in the Target Company, and accordingly
the Target Company would cease to be
a subsidiary of the Company. As at 31
December 2024, the above disposal doesn’t
meet the criteria to be classified as held for
sale.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors consider
the ultimate controlling party of the Group to be

Mr. Lu, an individual person.

As at 31 December 2024, the Directors consider
the immediate and ultimate controlling company
of the Group to be Puxing International and
Wanxiang Group respectively, which are

incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and the
PRC respectively. These entities do not produce

financial statements available for public use.
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REIFR RS EHE R IE 8 5E
BB AE (RABRBRIERATE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31

iR R RS N E
r B EHRRMEE
(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated)

(B BB UN R THT)

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 31 BE_E_NFE+-H=+—H
NEW STANDARDS AND IFFEEBEKBE ﬁﬂ%i?&ﬂ’ﬂlﬁ‘ﬁ?

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT K -HsJEA REENAGELE
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2024

Up to the date of issue of these financial BHEZSEMBRERTNEBH BK g5t
statements, the IASB has issued a number of new ZHEBEEEEEAEE_S _OFE+Z
or amended standards, which are not yet effective B=+t—HIEFEHNKRENEBREZSE
for the year ended 31 December 2024 and MR E R A 2 ZIEM ] R A&E
which have not been adopted in these financial STER] WEHRBIETY oI ERAE
statements. These developments include the B AERA & o

following which may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

RUTHBSHZE

R S s AR £

Amendments to IAS 21, The effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 1 January 2025
— Lack of exchangeability

BERE st ERE215 2B BXEFHHTE—RAZ 0 DM _ERF—HA—H

Amendments to IFRS 9, Financial instruments and |FRS 7, Financial 1 January 2026

instruments: disclosures — Amendments to the classification and

measurement of financial instruments

BT BREENFOF M T ARBRYHREGERNETREHLE ® T F—H—H
BB AR—ZH T A ERFEEET

Annual improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards — Volume 11 1 January 2026

B BREER G ENNFEELCE — 5111 “ETRF—HB—H
IFRS 18, Presentation and disclosure in financial statements 1 January 2027
BIPR B SR S 2R FE185% » B XV ZE S R & 2Tt —HF—H
IFRS 19, Subsidiaries without public accountability: disclosures 1 January 2027
BRI S R B19RBEA RSN B LG - K EE 2Tt —HF—H
The Group is in the process of making an AEBFFHZELZRNEXNERIAMB
assessment of what the impact of these TEERRS R E o E it > REE B A
developments is expected to be in the period of MZELERAIRAUEHESHERRE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the MEATE-

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E

RESULTS

Revenue Wz

Profit before taxation bR AR A

Income tax g

Profit for the year EREF

Attributable to: KUTALREL

Equity shareholders of AREIRmRE
the Company "

Non-controlling interests FERER

Profit for the year FREF

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ASSETS BE
Current assets MBEE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Total assets mEE
LIABILITIES &ff
Current liabilities REEE
Non-current liabilities ErEas
Total liabilities meR
Net assets BEFE
EQUITY i
Equity shareholders of ARERERE
the Company N
Non-controlling interests FERER
Total equity s

2024
—ECME

RMB’000
ARBTR

534,054

89,958
(30,039)

59,919

59,902
17

59,919

2024
—ECmE

RMB’000
ARETR

233,502
1,681,378

1,914,880
463,094
575,506

1,038,600
876,280

876,280

876,280
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eSS

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020
B =F _B__F _Z”_-F _B_TE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFRT AEETET
513,510 753,307 601,573 580,240
107,637 76,578 154,191 171,352
(36,797) (24,648) (50,399) (47,678)
70,840 51,930 103,792 123,674
70,842 51,932 103,825 124,190
) ) (33) (516)
70,840 51,930 103,792 123,674
BEEKRERE
As at 31 December
®+=-A=+—-H
2023 2022 2021 2020
ZTI=fF Z%CZHg BT IZEIZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETR AR®TRT ARETR
251,272 221,946 228,693 239,543
1,478,357 1,557,764 1,629,654 1,697,480
1,729,629 1,779,710 1,858,347 1,937,023
536,271 504,796 565,303 453,781
377,245 530,044 574,191 832,027
913,516 1,034,840 1,139,494 1,285,808
816,113 744,870 718,853 651,215
816,130 744,885 718,866 651,200
17) (15) (13) 15
816,113 744,870 718,853 651,215
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PUXING ENERGY LIMITED

LO/F., Dah Sing Financial Centre
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WWW.puxing-energy.com
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